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GOVERNMENT NoTIcE __ 
  

| DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - 
~No.1240, °°, 2° Ce a 29 August 2003 

HIGHER EDUCATION ACT, 1997 (ACT NO. 101 OF 1997) 

REGULATIONS FOR ANNUAL REPORTING 
BY HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS 

I, Professor Kader Asmal, MP, Minister of Education, hereby prescribe in terms of section 41, 

read with section 69. of the Higher Education Act, 1997 the information and format of an annual , 

report of the council of a public higher education institution." 

REGULATION S FOR ANNUAL REPORTING 
BY HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS 

‘Issued in terms of the Higher Education Act, 1 1997 

PARTI oe 

Ll _ GENERAL DEFINITIONS = 

‘auditor’ means any person registered a as such i in terms of the Public Accountants and Auditors : 

~ Act, 1991 (Act No. 80 of 1991); 

‘consolidation’ means the incorporation of the financial statements of a Higher Education 

Institution with the financial statements of corporate entities including trusts that fall under its 

control, into a single set of consolidated financial statements as specified by South African 

GAAP; 
‘council’ means the governing body of a public higher education institution; 
‘Department of Education’ means the Government department responsible for education at 
national level; 

‘institutional statute’ means any statute made by the council of a public higher education 
institution under section 32 of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997); 

' ‘Minister’ means the Minister of Education; 

‘principal’ means.the chief executive and abcounting officer of a public higher education 

institution, and includes a vice-chancellor and a rector; ae 

‘public higher education institution’ means any higher education institution that is established, 

deemed to be established or declared as a public higher education institution under the Higher 

Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of f 1997), ;
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‘restricted i funds’ means those funds of a Higher Education Institution that may be used only for 
the purposes that have been specified in legally binding terms by the provider of such funds or 
other legally empowered person; 
“SA GAAP?’ means the South African Statements on Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; 
‘senate’ means the body contemplated in section 28 of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 
101 of 1997), and includes an academic board; 
‘senior management’ means the employees of a public higher education institution designated 

as such in its Institutional Statutes; 
‘the Higher Education Act’ means the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997), 
‘unrestricted funds’ means those funds .of a Higher Education Institution that are within the 
unrestricted control of its Council: 

1.2 APPLICATION 

These Regulations for Annual Reporting apply to all public higher education institutions. 

1.3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT | 

These Regulations for Annual Reporting take effect on publication. 

| _ PART2 

2.1 STRUCTURE OF ANNUAL REPORT 

2.1.1. INFORMATION REQUIRED IN RESPECT OF PRECEDING YEAR 
The reports and statements on governance and reports on operations 
The report of the chairperson of the council 
The council’s statement on corporate governance 

The senates report to the council 
The institutional forum’s report to the council 

The report of the principal on management and administration 
The council’s report on risk assessment and the management thereof 
The audited annual financial statements, which must comply with South African 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) 
Disclosure of remuneration of senior management 

2.1.2 FORMAT OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

TABLES 1 TO 4



TABLEL 

FORMAT OF THE BALANCE SHEET 

Name of the Higher Education Institution 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 20nn (all amounts in R’000s) 

  

20nn-1 

  

            

Notes 20nn 20nn 20nn-1 

ASSETS ‘XKKX XXXK 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS XXXK : XXXX 
Property, Plant and Equipment x XXKX XXXX 
Intangible Assets x XXXX XXXX 
Non-Current Investments x - XXXX XXXX 
Non-Current Receivables xX: XXxXX XXXX 

Student Loans XXXX XXXX 
Other Non-Current Receivabes _ Xxx XXXX 

CURRENT ASSETS XXXK XXXK 
Inventories x. XXXX XXXX 
Accounts Receivable, Prepaid Amounts, etc. x XXXX XXXX 

Students for Fees “XXXK XXXX | 

-.Other Amounts XXxXK XXXX 
Marketable Securities x XXXK XXXX 
Cash, Bank and Cash Equivalents x _XXKX. XXX 

‘FUNDS AND LIABILITIES —_XXXX XOKXX 
. FUNDS UTILISED/AVAILABLE XXX XXXX 

- Property, Plant and Equipment (FPE) XXXX- : -XXXX | 

~ Restricted Use Funds - is XXX _XXXK 
Student Loan Funds XXXX XXXK 
Student Residences Funds XXKX) XXXX . 
Other — Education and General * : _XKXX So XXXX | 

Unrestricted Use Funds — Education and General oo. XXXX XXXX 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES. sg ce “XXXX XXKX 
“Borrowings — Interest Bearing © = x XXKX XXXX 
Post-Employment Benefits/Obligations x XXXX XXXX 

CURRENT LIABILITIES. ——_XXXX XXXX 
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities x XXXK . XXXX 
Provisions for Post-Employment Obligations x XKXK XXXX 
Provisions for Liabilities - Other x XXXX XXKK 

. Student Deposits x XXXX, XXX 
‘Current portion of Borrowings . x XXXK XXKX 
Short Term Borrowing — Bank Overdraft x XXKX XXXK     
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TABLE 2 

FORMAT OF THE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS 

_ Name of the Public Higher Education Institution 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds for the year ended 31 December 20nn (R’000s) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                              

DESCRIPTION -N Accumulated | Contingency | Endowment .SUB- Donor Contract Trust SUB- Student Residence Fixed | . o Fund Fund Fund TOTAL | . Fund. Fund Fond TOTAL | . Loan | Fund Asset | TOTAL t- Unrestricted | Unrestricted | Unrestricted/ | - A | Restricted | Restricted Restricted B "| Fand | Restricted Fand Cc Use Use: Designated . . Use Use Use. . Use PPE e : . Use oof. . / ‘ . 
: , s a -, : . . Balance at 1-1-20nn XXXX XXXXK XOOK XXXX XXXX | XXXX |. XXXXK XXXX- |} XXXX™ | JOEXX, xX XXXX Investments - Fair : - , 7] oo oy . : ‘ | value adjustment x XXXX XXX XXXX Xxx XXKK Xxxx {| Capital gains - . sale- ft ; of of investments x xxx | _XXXX XXxKX Income from ‘ 1 : , investments . xxx | XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX, "_XXXx XXXX. XXXX Net Surplus/ 

: 
Deficit(-) after 
investment income XXKX XXXX “XXXX “XXXX =XXKX “XXXX =XXXX -XXKX Funds utilised written 

: , off . 
-XXXX -XXXX Net transfers from ‘ 

Income Statement XXXKX ._XXxx XXXK XXKX XXKX Transfers debit x -XXXK -XXXX “XXXX “XXXX Balance at : / . 31-12-20nn XXXK XXXK XXXX XXXXK XXXKX XXKX XXXX XXXK XXX XXXX XXX XXXX     

The above statement of changes in funds is presented for the reporting year only — in compliance with GAAP the comparative figures for the previous year should be provided. An alternative form of presentation may be where individual funds comprise both identifiable restricted and unrestricted amounts. In such cases each fund will be contained in an individual column and both opening and closing balances must be separated into 'Unrestricted/Designated Use' and "Restricted Use’, , 

NOTES:- 

e
w
e
 

os
 

The headings (or a note) should be adequately descriptive of the nature governing the restrictions in each case 
Sub-Total A reflects the aggregate of available unrestricted/designated funds 
Sub-Total B reflects the aggregate of restricted funds 
The “Fixed Asset Fund PPE” is not classified and reflects aggregate expenditure on the asset item PPE 
Ifa fund had been set aside for new, replacement or renewal of PPE and will have been derived from council designated amounts or from funds received for specific purposes this should be disclosed as a separate (Funds for PPE) fund. | . 
The XXs that appear in the “Notes” column indicate that, where the detail of the item appearing on this statement is not clear from other statements or notes to the accounts, an explanatory note must be included in the “Notes to the accounts”, .   
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TABLE 3 
FORMAT OF THE INCOME STATEMENT 
Name of the Public Higher Education Institution 

Consolidated Income. Statement for the year ended 31 December 20nn (R'000s) 
<€-——-— EDUCATION AND GENERAL --—-> 
  

  

      

      
  

  

  

  
  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

N COUNCIL SPECIFICALLY . STUDENT 
° CONTROLLED» FUNDED SUB- AND STAFF 

. - ACTIVITIES. ACCOMMO- ‘ TOTAL ton. .| TOTAL 20nn-1 e DATION . 
s UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED RESTRICTED 

TOTAL INCOME XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX, XXXX XXXX 

RECURRENT ITEMS OK _XXKX "Om _EXX _XXKX" XXX 
State Appropriations— Subsidies and Grants XXXK XXKX XXXX XXXK XXXX © . XXXX 
Tuition and Other Fee Income XXKX XXKX XXXX XXXK XXXX XXXX 

_ Income from Contracts XKXX XXXX XXXK XXXX XXxX 
For research : XXXX XXKX XXXX XXXX XXXK 
For Other Activities EXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX 

Sales of Goods and Services XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX 
- Private Gifts and Grants XXUX XXXX XRXX XXXX XXXX 

| SUB-TOTAL - _XXKK XXXKX UXXKX XKXX ” XKxXx “XXKX 

Interest and Dividends - x _XKEX XXXKX _XXKX _KXEX XXXX . XXXX 

NON-RECURRENT ITEMS XXX _XXKX XXX xxx XNX XK 
‘Profit/Loss on disposal of PPE XXXK XXXXK XXXK XXXK XXXX XXXX 
Profit/Loss on Disposal of Investments XXX | XXKX XXK KRXX XXXXK XXKK 

Disposal of Expensed Equipment : x __XXXX XXXX XXXK XXXX | XXXK XXXX 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE XXX . 2x XXXX XXXX XXKX XXX 

"RECURRENT ITEMS _XXXX XXKX XXKX __XEXX XXKX 

| Personnel - | x XXKX _ XEKX XXXX XXXX XXKK 
Academic professional EXKX XXXX XXX . _ RKXX 

* Other Personnel” : an XXXX. XKXK -XXXX XXX‘ XKXX 

Other Current Operating Expenses. x XXX ” XXXX XXRX EXXK XXXX 
Depreciation Provision © x XXXX_ . XXXX_ RERK _XXKX xx XXKX. 
Depreciation ~ Additional Provision i “x, XXEX, Ff rs _XXXK __XXxx XEXX xX. XXKX 

| SUB-TOTAL (* 2 an hos KXKX |) HXKK “RK XXXX 3 XXXX 
Finance Costs x XXXX | __XXXX “XEXX XXXK $ XXXX 

NON-RECURRENT ITEMS . . . 2700 XXXK HExx |: pened " RXKX XOX 
Extra Ordinary Operating Expenses: XEXX XXXX . XXXX" “" OKEx Be ogee . XXXX, 
Personnel — Prior Year Adjustments XXXX : . _LXKKX | pe Tob 

Capital Experiditure Experiséd XXXX ” OXXXK ‘| XXXK XXXX XXXK XXXK 
Depreciation — Additional Provision x XXXK XXXX XXXK XXXX XXXK XXX 

| NET SURPLUS/DEFICTT (-) Before Transfers XKXX XEXX XUXK “RXKK KUXX ARK 

TRANSFER — RESTRICTED FUNDS NET -XXXX 2XXXX -KXXX 2XXKX 
Amounts Received not expended: To Funds . | *XXXX -KEXX “XXXK “KXKX 

Amounts Spent from prior year receipts: From Funds XXXK XXXX XXXK XXXX 

| NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT()) After Transfers RXXK XXEX XXXX -XXKK XEXX XXXX   
  

NB: The separation between Recurrent and Non-Recurrent Income & Expenditure items must be strictly observed. Consistent comparisons cannot be made 
-untess this is done. The inclusion of prior year obligations for accumulated leave and post employment benefits are cases in point.   
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TABLE 4 

FORMAT OF THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Name of the Public Higher Education Institution 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 20nn 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

NOTES 20nn 20nn-1 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘ 
Cash Retained from /(utilised by) Operations x XXXX (XXXx) 
Investment Income less Cost of Finance 

Finance Income XXXX XXXX 
Finance Costs (Xxxx) (xxxx) 

NET INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES XXXX XXXX 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (xxxx) (XXXx) 
Purchase of Non-Current Investments (Kxxx) (Xxxx) 
Disposals of Property, Plant and Equipment XXXX XXKX 
Disposals of Non-Current Investments | XXXX XXXX 
(Increase)/Decrease in Student Loans (xxxx) XXXK 

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (xxxx) (Xxx) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net Amount capitalised to/(expended from) from Reserves - XXXX XXXX 
Increase/(Decrease) in Interest Bearing Borrowings XXXX . (Xxxx) 

NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES XXXX XXXX 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS XXXX XXXX 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR XXXX (xxxx) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR XXXX XXXX         

NB: Expenditures on renewal of property, plant and equipment should be deducted from cash generated by operations 
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2.1.3 TABLE 5 

FORMAT OF THE DISCLOSURE 
Remuneration - Senior management 

No. 25407 9 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            
  

  

  

      
      
  

  

  

  

  

          

NAME OFFICE HELD” AGGREGATE 
: AMOUNT R,000s 

_ AA Principal XXX 

AB Vice-Principal XXX 

AC Deputy Principal Research XXX 

AD Executive Director — Finance XXX 

AE Deputy Principal Academic XXX 

AF Depuiy Principal Personnel XXX 

AG Registrar XXX 

AH . Deputy Principal Student affairs XXX 

Al Executive Dean - Business Schoo! XXX 

AJ Executive Dean - Health Sciences XXX 

AK Executive Dean — Science XXX 

AL Executive Dean - Engineering & Built 
Environment XXX 

AM Executive Dean — Commerce and Business 

Studies XXX 

AN Executive Dean — Humanities XXX 

Exceptional payment amounts — each exceeding in annual aggregate R249 999 

NAME TO WHOM PAID AMOUNT 
R's 

Commutation. of AN Executive - Dean Humanities XXN NNN 

leave 

Ditto AM Exec. Dean — Commerce ! XXN_XNN 

Pension top-up BZ Retired-Dean Humanities { XXN_NXX 

Pavments for attendance at meetings of the Council and its Committees 

TO WHOM PAID NUMBER ATTENDANCE AT REIMBURSEMENT OF 

OF MEETINGS EXPENSES — 
MEMBERS | AGGREGATE AMOUNT AGGREGATE : 

: PAID — R'000s AMOUNT PAID —~ R’000s 

Chair of Council I XX x 

Chairs of committees 4 XX x 

Members of Council 28 XX XX 

Members of committees 20 XX XX   
  

2.2 DATE OF SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT > 
é 

Higher Education institutions must submit their annual reports in respect of the preceding 

year on or before 30 June each year. Two hard copies and one electronic copy must be 

~ submitted. 

3.1 IMPLEMENTATION 

PART 3 

The schedule to these Regulutions is an implementation manual to which institutions should adhere 

in order to comply with these Regulations, 

Kw 2S 
Professor Kader Asmal, MP 

Minister of Education 

29 July 2003 

03-016060—B
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SCHEDULE 

IMPLEMENTATION MANUAL
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DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
HIGHER EDUCATION 

IMPLEMENTATION MANUAL FOR 

ANNUAL REPORTING _ 
BY Oo 

_ HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS 

THIS MANUAL COMPRISES THE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ANNUAL 

REPORTING BY ALL TECHNIKONS AND UNIVERSITIES 

  

_ DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
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IMPLEMENTATION MANUAL FOR ANNUAL REPORTING: HIGHER 
EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS 

Preface 

Purpose 

The primary purpose of this manual is specify the format and the content of the annual 

_Teport of a higher education institution to the Minister as prescribed by the Minister in 

the Regulations for Annual Reporting by Higher Education Institutions terms of 

section 41 of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997), as amended. 
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1.1 

CHAPTER 1 
INTRODUCTION 

Defining the objective 

Public higher education institutions (HEIs) enjoy considerable autonomy. This 

autonomy makes it important that the structures of governance and ‘management of 

these institutions account to both internal and external stakeholders in a consistent and 

prescribed. manner. The developments in Annual Reporting and the emphasis on 

“harmonisation” both nationally and internationally, require that Annual Reporting 

_ should comply with generally accepted practice. 

This manual provide a framework for Annual Reporting by public HEIs aimed at 

ensuring minimum standards of reporting by governance structures and by 

_ management; and financial reporting according to South African Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice. The manual constitutes the determination of the Minister of 

~ Education in terms of section 41 of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No.101 of 

1997), as amended. 7 

Conditions confronting higher education institutions have become more demanding on 

good management over the past two decades. Constantly dwindling opportunities for — 

acquiring essential resources and, in recent years, ‘increasing competition among 

public HEIs and from a growing sector of private higher education institutions, are but 

a few examples of factors that have contributed to a new and challenging environment. 

The demands on HEIs to adopt the best financial and general management practices 

“under these increasingly difficult economic conditions are largely dependent on the 

availability of excellent financial and other relevant information in accordance with 

best practice in the private sector. (King II: 18-20) 

The Council and the Principal of a university or a technikon are responsible for 

initiating measures to: (King If: 46-70) 

i provide resources of the right quantity and quality and at the right price. 

(economy) 

ii achieve the optimal balance between outputs of products, services and other 

activities and resources used to produce them (efficiency) 

iii achieve policy objectives, operational goals, and other intended effects 

' (effectiveness) / 

iv ensure that all activities are conducted according to accepted standards of 

commercial and social morality (ethically) and in accordance with relevant 

legislation. 

The promotion of economy, efficiency, effectiveness, and ethical behaviour in 

accordance with relevant legislation, depends on adequate management measures for, 

amongst others, the planning, budgeting, authorisation, control and evaluation of the 

-. procurement and utilisation of resources. At the same time it is essential for every 

HEI to maintain the quality in its primary activities of education and research that 

conforms to acceptable standards. It is the responsibility of a Principal, through the 

executive management team, to institute these management and operational measures.
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1.2 

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that an institution's primary operations 
and its management and administration function accordingly. 

To meet the challenges of a changing South Africa, higher education decision-makers 
are forced to look ahead for a decade and beyond, in an endeavour to anticipate the 
demands of a changing environment and the way:in which they should plan to satisfy 
these demands. It has, therefore, become urgent for HEI information systems to 
support ‘best practice’ in general and financial ‘management. In respect of the latter to 
facilitate more flexible financial planning and reporting processes, thus to enable the 
management of an HEI to budget, allocate and employ its financial resources to the 
best advantage of the institution and with the minimum of restrictions, 

The Higher Education Act requires HEIs: to report on their general - specifically 
including the financial - condition (section 41). In such reporting institutions need to 
comply with relevant standards of accountability for their governance and 
management as required in the King Report on Corporate Governance - 2002 and in 
their financial reporting as codified in the South African Statements of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP). Oo 

However, the form of presentation of an Annual Report is adapted from what is in 
general use in the private sector-in order, amongst others, to acknowledge the 
identification of separate purposes for. which funds are held and used in higher 
education institutions. - . 

Accountability (King II: 7-20; 135-141) 

Individuals or groups of individuals that assume fiduciary and/or managerial 
responsibilities by means of delegated mandates incur an absolute responsibility to 
give a regular account of the results of exercising those delegated powers. In 

_ discharging this obligation it is essential that this form of reporting is not restricted to 
events, facts and achievements in abstract terms but provides the means whereby these 
can be assessed and measured against projected outcomes, plans and targets. 

In South African HEIs the following delegated powers and responsibilities are 
provided in terms of the Higher Education Act: 

The duly constituted Council - Governance 
_. The duly constituted Senate — Academic affairs 

_ The duly appointed Principal - Management/administration. 

It thus follows that each of these has the obligation to account for actions performed 
under his or her respective mandates. By law they are required to provide such account 
to the state through the Minister of Education and by accepted practice to report to 
other stakeholders that would normally include staff and students of the institution, its 
donors and alumni and members of the community in which it is located. 

The requirements to report on the structures and the achievements of governance, 
academic affairs and general management/administration, as indicated above, and on 
the financial condition, have become the norm for Annual Reporting for HEIs. This 
manual contains, therefore, the required of content and format of such Annual Reports.
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The governance, management and financial reports must reflect the extent to which an 

institution's objectives in terms of its vision, mission, and strategic targets, have been 

achieved as well as showing that the structures of. governance and of 

management/administration conform to accepted norms of corporate practice. . 

Financial statements and supporting data have been designed primarily to provide the 

means of assessment of financial stability and performance. Quantitative, largely 

financial, data are measures of this. Financial data and derived indicators must, 

however, inter-relate with other non-financial data required from HEIs in order to 

assist those who prepare and those who use those data in planning and decision- 

making. The definition of standardised financial reporting requirements serves to 

facilitate communication between providers and users of that information. This 

manual sets out to achieve that by: a 

e. prescribing formats and the principles, practices and definitions associated with 

reporting formats illustrated in this manual, as well as providing examples of the 

format and the content for the preparation of various reports and statements; 

e prescribing financial accounting recording principles and practices associated with 

higher education requirements to maintain separately identifiable records for funds 

received for specified purposes and for the expenditure of those funds; 

® providing examples of “performance and status” indicators required as part of 

annual financial reporting requirements. . 

19



20 No. 25407 GOVERNMENT GAZETTE, 29 AUGUST 2003 

CHAPTER 2 

STANDARDS AND STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR ANNUAL REPORTING 

2.1 

2.1.1 

2.1.2 

BY PUBLIC HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS 

Legal requirements . | 

Sections 20, 40 and 41 of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997), as 
amended, prescribe the following: . 

Alienation of immovable property 

Section 20 of the Higher Education Act prescribes that any form of alienation of 
immovable property by any technikon or university must have the prior approval of 
the Minister of Education. 

Borrowing for and acquisition of immovable property 

Section 40: Funds of public higher education institutions 
(1) The funds of a public higher education institution consist of- 

(a) funds allocated by the Minister in terms of section 39; 
(b) any donations or contributions received by the institution; 
(c) money raised by the institution; . 
(@) money raised by means of loans and overdrafts; 
(e) income derived from investments; 
Q money received for services rendered to any other institution or person; . 
(g) money payable by students for. higher education programmes provided by 

the institution, but the council may discriminate in a fair manner between 
students who are not citizens or permanent residents of the Republic and 
students who are citizens or permanent residents of the Republic when the 
amount payable is determined; 

(h) money received from students or employees of the institution for 
accommodation or other services provided by the institution; and 

(i) other receipts from whatever source. 
(2)(a) Subject to paragraph (b), a public higher education institution may only 

with a resolution of its council, not taking into account any vacancy that 
may exist, enter into a loan or an overdraft agreement. 

(6) A resolution contemplated in paragraph (a) must be approved by the 
Minister if the sum of the borrowings it authorises plus the borrowing 
previously approved but not yet taken up, plus the institution’s short-term 
and long-term debt at that date exceeds —~ . 

(i) such amount as the Minister has determined for such institution; or 
(ii) in the absence of such determination, five per cent of the average 
income of the public higher education institution during the two years 
immediately preceding the date of such resolution. 

(3)(a) Subject to paragraph (b), a public higher education institution may only 
with a resolution of its council, not taking into account any vacancy that 
may exist, embark on any — . 

(i) construction of a permanent building or other infrastructure 
development; 

(ii) purchasing of any immovable property; or



STAATSKOERANT, 29 AUGUSTUS 2003 No. 25407 21 

(iii) long-term lease of immovable property. an 

(b) Any action contemplated in paragraph (a) must be approved by the 

Minister if the value of such development exceeds five per cent of the 

average income of that public higher education institution received 

during the two years immediately preceding such action. a 

2.1.3 Records to be kept and information to be furnished 

‘Section 41: Records to be kept and information to be furnished by council 

(1) The council of a public higher education institution must, in the manner prescribed. 

by the Minister- 
(a) keep records of all its proceedings, and 

(b) keep complete accounting records of all assets, liabilities, income and 

expenses and any other financial transactions of the public higher 

education institution as a whole, of its substructures and other bodies 

operating under its auspices. 

(2) The council of a public higher education institution must, in respect of the 

preceding year and by a date or dates prescribed by the Minister, provide the Minister 

with such information, in such format as the Minister prescribes. 

2.2 Amnual Report (King Il: 7-20; 49-50; 91-101; 147-151) 

2.2.1 Annual Report must comprise: 

e REPORTS AND STATEMENTS ON GOVERNANCE AND REPORTS ON 

OPERATIONS 

° ANNUAL FINANCIAL REVIEW 

e REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON THE CONSOLIDATED 

. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

° CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

. REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON THE SUPPLEMENTARY 

‘ FINANCIAL DATA AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

° SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

AND STATUS INDICATORS 

The minimum content of each of these six sections is prescribed. Details are given in 

the following chapters, together with examples. 

2.2.2 Compliance with recommendations of the "King Report on Corporate 

Governance for South Africa — 2002" 

The Council, in respect of its governance, and the Executive Management, in respect 

of its management and administration, must ensure that the institution for which they 

are responsible complies, as far as is relevant to higher education institutions, with 

the content and recommendations of the King Report on Corporate Governance 

03-016060—C



22 No. 25407 GOVERNMENT GAZETTE, 29 AUGUST 2003 - 

_ for South Africa — 2002. References to certain, although not all, applicable pages of the King Report will be made in appropriate sections of this manual. 

2.2.3. Annual financial statements component of the Annual Report: | 
Compliance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) (King I: 42-45; 135-137) . . 

Financial statements should fairly present the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the institution. Compliance with South African GAAP, and in terms of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act 101 of 1997), as amended, will normally achieve “fair presentation”. 

Compliance with South African GAAP requires compliance with the provisions and requirements of each of the applicable statements of generally accepted accounting practice and with the relevant approved interpretations, 

Financial statements that do so comply will disclose this fact.. The extent to which the financial reporting requirements for HEIs are adapted to acknowledge the particular requirements within higher education should be noted. 

2.2.3.1 Concepts of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) 

“The objective of financial statements is to provide information about the financial position, performance and changes in financial position of the enterprise that is useful to a wide range of users int making economic decisions” (See AC000.12 “Framework for...”; a framework approved for issue by the Accounting Practices Board) 
. oO 

There are two fundamental underlying assumptions in the presentation of financial statements and governance and management reports- 

(i) _ the effects of transactions and other events are recognised as they occur and 
not as cash or cash equivalent is received or paid. This is known as the 
“Accrual Basis”; and 

(ii) financial statements and other reports are normally prepared on the assumption 
_ that an enterprise is a going concern and will continue in operation for the 

foreseeable future. This is known as the “Going Concern” assumption. 

There are some “qualitative” characteristics of these statements and reports. These 

e Understandability:. Given the assumption of a reasonablé knowledge of ; _ corporate-and economic activities and accounting terminology as well as a 
willingness to study the information with reasonable diligence, financial 
statements and reports should be readily understandable by users. In this connection the fundamental concept of “matching” items of expenditure 
against relevant items of income must be applied. However, the application of _ 
the concept does not allow the recognition “of items in the balance sheet that 
do not match the definition of assets or liabilities” (AC101.27).
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~S@ Relevance: The. information presented has the quality of relevance when it 

influences the economic decisions of users by helping them evaluate the past, 

present or future events or, confirming, or correcting their past evaluations. _ 

“@° “Materiality: Information is material if its omission or misstatement, could 

influence economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 

statements. 

e Reliability: Depends on - 
(a) Faithful representation . . 

(b) Substance over form (substance and economic reality take precedence 

over “legal form”) . 

(c) Neutrality (free from bias) . — 

(d) Prudence (in dealing with inevitable uncertainties in the preparation of 

the statements, realistic caution should prevail) 

(e) Completeness. 

ee Comparability: The bases of preparation should enable comparative 

evaluations of different enterprises and of the same enterprise over time. This 

is reliant on the application of the concept of consistency in preparation over 

time. | 

There are constraints on the presentation of relevant and reliable information. These 

relate to the “timeliness’’ in which the information is presented; the balance between 

- “benefit” and “cost” in respect of the cost of providing the particular information; and 

the situations in which it is necessary to balance the various “qualitative 

characteristics”. 

Finally, financial statements in particular have the essential requirement that they are a 

‘fair presentation’ of the events covered. ,
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2.2.3.2 Accounting standards compliance 

Balance Sheet | : 7 AC 101 

Income Statement | AC 101, AC 103 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
AC 101 

Cash Flow Statement | oe AC 118 
Inclusion of details of Accounting Policies 

- Basis of Preparation AC 101, AC 103 
Consolidation — Basis of Incorporation AC 131, AC 132, AC 409 
Income Recognition . . AC 111 
Investments in Associates - AC 110 
Foreign Currencies 

AC 112 
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation AC 125 

Recognition and Measurement | AC 133° 
- Goodwill : AC 129 

Research and Development _ | AC 129 
Computer Software Costs ~ AC 129, AC 406 | 
Other Intangible Assets 

AC 129 
Investments AC 110, AC 119, AC 132, AC 133, AC 413 
Property Plant and Equipment & Impairment of Assets AC 123, AC 128, AC 135 
Accounting for Leases 

AC105 
Govt. Subsidies and Grants AC 134, AC 410 

Inventories | AC 108 
Accounts Receivable, Financial Instruments ; AC 101, AC 133 
Cash and Cash Equivalents , AC 101, AC 118 
Provisions, Contingent Assets, Contingent Liabilities AC 130 
Employee Benefits 

AC 116 
Other Post-Retirement Obligations AC 116 
Events after Balance Sheet date | AC 107 
Borrowing Costs 

AC 114 
Joint Ventures 

AC 119 
Related Party Disclosures 

AC 126
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Responsibility for Annual Reports 

The Council of a HEI is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 

institution’s Annual Report as well as any interim reports including any interim 

_ financial statements that may be specifically required.
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CHAPTER 3 

CONTENT AND FORM OF ANNUAL REPORTS 

The following is a representation of the content and the form of the Annual Report that each higher education institution is required to present to the Department of Education within six months of the end of an institution's financial year; i.e. a date not later than 30 June each year. 

References in bold are to page numbers in the “King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa — 2002”. As indicated on page 5, all HEIs are expected to comply with its applicable recommendations. The various references are for the reader's convenience and are . hot intended to convey the only content of the Report applicable to HEIs. 

3.1. Reports and statements on governance and reports on operations 

These statements comprise: 

(King Il: 7-20; 32-41; 91-142) 
Report of the Chairperson of the Council 
Statement on corporate governance 

Council committees 
Conflict management 
Worker and student participation — co-operative governance 
Code of ethics 

Report of the Senate to the Council on teaching, research and extension 
. Report of the Institutional Forum 
Report of the Principal on management/administration 
Report on internal administrative/operational structures and controls 
Report on assessment of exposure to risk and the management thereof. 
Annual financial review 

3.1.1 Report of Chairperson of Council 

This report is the means whereby the Council through its Chairperson discharges part of its statutory duty to account for its actions and achievements in the governance of the institution during the period under review. 

This example and those that follow are for guidance only. The respective reports must reflect not only the effect of decisions and actions taken and the influence, both past and present, of these on the institution, but also the effect that these, and possibly other decisions and actions, will have on the institution in the future. In this latter regard the relationship between decisions and actions and the articulated mission, strategies, objectives and plans for the institution should be incorporated in these reports. In the example below and in the examples of the other reports that follow, there are items that are duplicated. How these are to be included in the reports of actual institutions depends on individual style, but this report must reflect only matters relating to governance.
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Report of-Chairperson of Council would include: 

(King II: 24-26; 35-37; 46-67; 176-212) 
- . 

Developments, academic and other, that influence progress towards the attainment of the 

mission and objectives of the institution. co Lo oe - 

e - . Statement of self-assessment of the achievement of the Council in attaining 

objectives set for the period under review with summary detail of realised 

achievements (self-evaluation). A summary of attendance by members at 

. meetings of the Council should be included . 7 

@ Matters of significance considered by the Council during the period 

o- Operational information (¢.g. changes in the operational structure — academic 

and administrative, new senior appointments - academic and managerial, 

academic/research. achievements, Operational sustainability, prestigious 

awards to staff or students, changes in the permanent infrastructure e.g. new 

plant and buildings) 

° Achievements in meeting social responsibility commitments, including 

composition of staff and student bodies 

Financial health/viability, including funding sources and material changes . 

In respect of all Council sub-committees, a statement that those with a 

mandate of strategic or financial significance are chaired by individuals with 

appropriate skills and experience. In addition, reference should be made to 

significant matters on the agendas of these committees affecting the institution 

that are unresolved at the year end or have not come before the Council. 

Summaries of attendance by members at meetings should be included 

e Significant student data and relevant statistics including realisation of 

transformation targets 

Campus development 

Facilities and major capital works 

Events | 
Student services 

Distance learning 

Working with industry a 

Significant changes that have taken plac 

~ The report is signed by the Chairperson of the Council. 

  

3.1.2 Council’s statement on corporate governance 

The Council is required to provide an account of its governance by means of a separate 

corporate governance statement, an example of which appears below, and in which detail of 

governance structures, responsibilities and procedures, are provided. | ” 

Although this statement is not normally signed by the Chairperson of the Council, it must be 

approved by the Council. . —
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3.1.2.1 Council and Council Committees 

(King Il: 11-12; 46-72) . . 
‘The following statement is given to assist readers of the Annual Report to obtain an understanding of the governance structures and procedures applied by the HEI's Council. 

The HEI is committed to the principles of discipline, transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility, fairness and social responsibility as advocated in the King Report on Corporate Governance. Accordingly, the Council endorses, and during the period under review, has applied the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct and the Code of Ethical Behaviour and Practice as set out in the King II Report (King II: 21-22; 37; 101-106; 221-227). In supporting these Codes the Council recognises the need to conduct the business of the HEI with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted ‘practices. Monitoring the HEI's compliance with the Code forms part of the mandate of the HEI's Audit Committee. 

The External Auditors, (XYZ & Company], reviewed the HEI's compliance with the specific matters in the Code, in accordance with recommendations made in the King Report. They reported that it is appropriate for the Council to make the above statement. [NB. The use of the auditors to report as above for this purpose is optional] 

Council © 

. (King I: 22-26; 46-72) 7 ; . 
The HEI's Council comprises academic and non-academic persons appointed in terms of the Statutes of the HEL, the majority (at least 60 per cent) of whom are neither employees nor students. The role of Chairperson of the Council is separated from the role of the HEI's chief executive, the Principal. Matters reserved to the Council for decision-making are set out in the Statutes of the HEI, by custom and in terms of the Higher Education Act, 1997. The Council is responsible for the ongoing strategic direction of the HEI, approval of major developments and the receipt of regular reports from management on the day to day operations of its business. The Council meets six times a year and has several committees, including a Remuneration Committee, a Finance Committee, a Council Membership Committee and an Audit Committee (King Il: 28-29; 67-69; 182- 212). All of these committees are formally constituted with terms of reference and comprise mainly members of the Council who are neither employees nor students of the HEI. 

Remuneration Committee 

(King II: 26-28; 194-200) 
The Remuneration Committee's specific terms of reference include direct authority for, or consideration and recommendation to the Council of, matters relating to, amongst others, general staff policies, remuneration and perquisites, bonuses, executive remuneration, members of Council remuneration and fees, service contracts and retirement funds. 

, 

Finance Committee 

The Finance Committee, amongst others, recommends the HEI's annual revenue and capital budgets and monitors performance in relation to approved operating and capital budgets. It is responsible for assuring the financial health of the institution as a “going 
concern”. It is also responsible for ensuring that the accounting information systems and the personnel complement. are maintaining the accounting records of the institution in 
good order.
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Planning and Resources Committee 

The Planning and Resources Committee is concemed with medium and long term 

“strategic plans, together with providing input for the preparation of the annual budget by 

the Finance Committee. It is responsible, amongst ‘others, for ensuring that all financial 

implications of both capital development programmes and the annual operating budget, 

'- including the implications of resource allocation to strategic activities, are referred to the 

- . Finance Committee. . 

Council Membership Committee 

- The Council Membership Committee considers nominations for vacancies in the Council 

- membership in terms of the relevant Statute. 

Audit Committee 

(King IL: 34-35; 68; $6-90; 186-194) ~ uo 

‘The Audit Committee whose chairperson and members are members of Council or are not 

"members of Council but specialists in the field, was established six years ago. Both the 

internal and external auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee, which 

ensures that their independence is in no way impaired. Meetings are held at least twice a 

year and are attended by the external and internal auditors and appropriate members of 

the executive management. The Audit Committee operates in accordance with written 

terms of reference, confirmed by the Council, which provide assistance to the Council 

‘with regard to: 

e ensuring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory 

authorities Oe os 

"@ . matters relating to financial and internal control, accounting policies, reporting and 

"disclosure : . 

«internal and external audit policies 

activities, scope, adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function and audit 

"plans oo ““ 

_ assessment of all areas of financial risk and the management thereof 

review/approval of external audit plans, findings, problems, reports and fees 

compliance with the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct 

compliance. with the HEI's Code of Ethics 

NB: Relevant detail of all other Council sub-committees concerned with strategic, 

policy or financial matters must be included. 

3.1.2.2 Statement on Conflict Management 

“A group of individuals has been identified who are professionally qualified and 

experienced in-mediation, arbitration and dispute resolution and are available to 

the Council to assist in the resolution of any disputes between parties within the 

‘institution with the objective of avoiding conflict. During the current year it has 

not been necessary to call upon their services. 

3.1.2.3 Statement on worker and student participation (co-operative governance) 

(King Il: 8-9; 114-120) 
The HEI utilises a variety of participating structures on issues which affect 

employees and students directly and materially, and which are designed to
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achieve good employer/employee and student relations through effective sharing of relevant information, consultation and the identification and resolution. of conflicts. These structures embrace goals relating to productivity, career security, legitimacy and identification with the HEL . | 

An affirmative action programme forms part of the HEI's training programme and business plan. 

3.1.2.4 Statement on Code of Ethics 

(King HI: 221-227) 

The HEI's Code of Ethics commits the HEI to the highest standards of integrity, behaviour and ethics in dealing with all its stakeholders, including its Council members, managers, employees, students, customers, suppliers, competitors, donors and society at large. Council members and staff are expected to observe the institution’s ethical obligations in order to conduct business through the use of 
fair commercial competitive practices. 

The wording used in the above examples must be adapted to the circumstances applicable to individual institutions. 

The above statement must be approved by the Council, but it is not normally 
signed by the Chairperson. 

  

3.1.3 Senate report to the Council 

The report of the Senate will normally contain the following: 

° Changes in academic structures 
e Composition of the Senate 

Significant developments and achievements in: 
Instruction e.g. modes of delivery 
Research 

Composition and size of student body 
® Instruction: 

Limitations on access to certain courses 
Levels of academic progress in different disciplines and levels of study 
Awards and achievements 

° Research 

Summaries of various programmes 
Awards 

__ Funding . 
Access to financial aid and provision thereof 

° Changes in tuition fees charged and financial aid for students — 

The report is signed by the Chairperson of the Senate
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Report of Institutional Forum to the Council 
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The content of the report will depend on the activities of the Institutional Forum 

The report of the Institutional Forum must include all instances of advice sought by. 

and the advice given to the Council by the Institutional Forum. The composition of the 

Forum should be listed. 

The report is signed by the Chairperson of the Institutional Forum. 

  

3.1.5 RB 
“> > (King Th; 53-54) 

Report of Principal on management/administration — 

- The report of the Principal must address the following: 

© The principal managerial/administrative achievements must be measured ini terms of the 

plans, goals and objectives set for the period under review 

oe Managerial/administrative aspects of the operations of the institution including new senior 

3.1.6 

executive/administrative appointments 

e The achievements of the administrative structures and resources, both personnel and 

systems, should be assessed in terms of realistic expectations - - 

The adequacy of staffing levels, particularly in critical areas 

The extent to which equity targets in the workplace have been realised 

The quality of information available to management and the administrative processes 

Student services and extra-curricular activities : 

Relationships with the community, both academic and service 

Changing patterns in providing academic. courses 

In addition, there should be included a statement of self-assessment of the achievement of the 

Principal in attaining objectives set for the period under review with summary detail of 

realised achievements (self-evaluation). ae oo 

This report should address matters relating only to the management/administration of 

the institution. 

The report is signed by the Principal 

  

Report on internal administrative/operational structures and controls 

An example of wording that should be adapted by individual institutions relating 

to “Systems of Internal Control”. . . 

(King II: 73-90; 216-220) 

The HEI maintains systems of internal control over financial reporting and the safeguarding of 

assets against unauthorised acquisition, us¢ or disposition of such assets. Such systems are 

designed to provide reasonable assurance to the HEI and the Council regarding an operational 

environment that promotes the safeguarding of the HET's assets and the preparation and 

communication of reliable financial and other information.
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It includes documented organisational structures and division of responsibilities, established policies and procedures, including a Code of Ethics, which até'communicated throughout the organisation, to foster a strong ethical climate and the careful selection, training and development of its people. 

Information systems utilising modern information technology are in use throughout the organisation. All have been developed and implemented according to defined and documented standards to achieve efficiency, effectiveness, reliability and security. Accepted standards are applied to protect the privacy and ensure control over all data including disaster recovery and . “back-up” procedures. Systems are designed to promote ease of use for all users. The development, mainenance and operation of all systems are under the control of competently trained staff. 

In utilising electronic technology to conduct transactions with staff and with third parties, control aspects are given close scrutiny and procedures designed and implemented to minimise the risk of fraud or error. : 

Internal auditors monitor the operation of internal control systems and report findings and recommendations to management and the Council. Corrective actions are taken to address control deficiencies and other opportunities for improving the systems when identified. The Council, operating through its Audit Committee, provides oversight of the financial reporting process. ; 

There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even an effective internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and the safeguarding of assets. Furthermore, the effectiveness of an internal control system can change with circumstances. 

The HEI assessed its internal control systems as at dd/mm/yyyy in relation to the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in its Internal Control Manual. Based on its assessment, the HEI believes that, as at dd/mm/yyyy, its systems of internal control over its operational environment, information reporting and safeguarding of assets against unauthorised acquisitions, use or disposition, met those criteria. 

In other matters on the agendas of the Audit Committee there were no outstanding items that exposed the HEI to loss arising from undue material risk. 

This section must be prepared for and signed by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and the head of internal audit. 

  

3.1.7 Report on risk exposure assessment and the management thereof 

(King H: 30-34; 73-85; 216-220) — 
‘The following note provides the basis from which the statement on risk can be 
prepared. It identifies the two primary categories of “financial” and “non- financial” risk and the managerial procedures that must be in place in order that a report on risk can be prepared 

3.1.7.1 Identification and assessment of risk | 

Risk can be defined as “a potential threat or possibility that an action or event will adversely or beneficially affect an organisation's ability to achieve its objectives”.
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.. . Events and actions that. are potential risks must be identified and the likelihood of 

_... them occurring and their anticipated impact assessed. In every organisation there is the 

-. .~fesponsibility of balancing opportunities and risks if its economic progress is to be 

maintained. Risk profiles must initially be controlled within the normal organisational 

internal control structures and procedures. — , 

‘Despite these structures and procedures the potential exists that adverse events will 

~-oceur and will affect the results of normal operations throughout the institution at all 

‘levels of activity. It is, therefore, essential that, firstly, the exposure to such specific 

“risk events” be identified, and secondly, the likelihood of any one of these events : 

occurring as well as its potential impact, needs to be assessed. Finally, and. most. 

importantly, an HEI must have identified, through defined responsibility and 

_... accountability of management, each risk event, condition or area. There must, . 

_ therefore, be an established line-function individual/committee with the remit of | 

determining the identification, interpretation/assessment, intervention measures and all — 

aspects of the management of risk affecting the HEL. A resultant “risk register” should _ 

be maintained. " . 

_ The scope of the duties of risk management within the organisation must, therefore be 

clearly defined. The individual/committee responsible will report to both the Audit 

and Finance Committees and through it to the Council and the individual or the 

Chairperson will have unrestricted access to the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee 

and of the Council and to the Principal. It will also be essential to report to other 

appropriate committees, e.g. “buildings and safety”. At least annually the Council 

should review a comprehensive report on significant risks facing the institution. 

There are risks that will have direct financial implications and there are those that will 

not have immediate direct financial implications. These are differentiated as “financial 

risks” and “non-financial risks”. Eventually, “non-financial risks” may have serious 

~ financial implications that will need to be identified. 

3.1.7.2, Examples of categories of risk 

Financial 

Financial instruments: — ' Liquidity — inability to raise funds 

Interest rate fluctuations . Intake — declining student numbers 

Unanticipated loss of capital Fraudulent activities— staff/students/others 

Currency and foreign exchange Credit — non payment of amounts due 

Fees increase effects _- Inadequate or lapsed insurance cover 

Physical disaster — fire, flood Change — structural , ' 

Uncompleted contracts Change — operational 

Non-financial 

Personnel — incompetent staff . Competitive attractiveness 

Campus unrest Compliance — laws, procedures 

Reputation — damage to image Country local — political/economic/social 

Threats to health and safety Country foreign — political/economic/social 

Operational — process inadequacies 
Operational:— security inadequacies 

HIV/AIDS . 
Operational — process failures, e.g. information 

technology
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- --The above lists of categories are nor intended to be all-inclusive and within each category there will be individual circumstances indicative of tisk conditions. Owing to individual specificity it will be essential to appoint individuals or groups with the requisite expertise to assess a risk condition a id decide on the best intervention, e.g., through insurance or preventive or other measures. 

3.1.7.3 Management ‘and control of consequences. of risk (intervention and 
physical/financial control) 

All potential risk consequences must be both identified and evaluated and, by management thereof, conditions within which such risks arise must ‘constantly be controlled and monitored. Methods of minimising the adverse consequences must be employed based on cost effectiveness analysis. The risk register must, therefore, be 
constantly up-dated. 

The proper management of such conditions is, therefore, a matter that the governance of an institution must be assured about and on which it must receive reports. A pre- 
‘condition for this is that responsibility and accountability for the identification and 

_ Management of risk events and risk areas have been assigned and managed within the 
institution. 

A report on “risk and risk management” prepared by the risk committee or the 
responsible officer is included in the Annual Report and signed by the individual or 
the Chairperson of the Risk Committee or by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

This report should describe in general terms any structures in place to assess and to 
minimise the risk of loss, both financial and non-financial, to the institution. The most 
significant risks should be identified together with measures adopted to control these 
within the context of the strategic attitude to risk adopted by the Council and the 
administration. - 

3.1.7.4 Example of a section of the report dealing with financial instruments follows: - (Appropriate wording should be used by individual institutions.) 

Financial risks — financial instruments 

The financial risks faced by the HEI include interest rate risk, exchange rate risk and credit risk; The HEI borrows at both fixed and floating rates of interest to finance its operations. Some purchase contracts of study materials are entered into in foreign currencies. Credit risk arises when derivative instruments are used or purchases are made on deferred credit terms. Credit risk also arises when amounts are owed to the institution. - 

.. The objectives in using financial instruments are to reduce uncertainty over future cash flows arising from movements in interest and exchange rates, and to manage the liquidity of cash resources. The following strategies are employed to achieve these objectives. Interest rate exposures are managed through interest rate swaps taken out with lending banks and foreign exchange forwards are taken out to manage Currency risks in future purchases. Decisions on the level of risk undertaken are confined to the management committee that has established limits by transaction type and by counter party. 

Trading for speculative purposes is prohibited. Forward foreign exchange and interest rate derivative counter parties are confined to the HEI's principal lending bank, XYZ Bank. Purchases of certain Significant capital assets are made using finance lease arrangements, All interest rate derivative transactions are subject to approval by the Director: Finance before execution.
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Current policies established by the management committee and which are unchanged from the prior 

year are: one _ ; 

. To sell forward no more than 75% net foreign currency receipts for the next two years 

ce To hold more than 50% of total borrowings at fixed rates. 

Management of credit, currency and interest rate exposures is the responsibility of the financial 

controller. Monthly management reports contain details of cost and market value of all financial 

. instruments, including open forward contracts and interest rate swaps. An analysis of exposures against . 

- limits established by the management committee is also provided. These limits principally cover the 

maximum permitted exposure in respect of. 

° Foreign exchange transactions, 

. Finance lease debts 

. « Floating rate borrowings 

. Credit concentrations . 

" ‘The report is signed by the “ officer/committee with the designated “risk” 

responsibility and/or by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

  

3.1.8 Annual financial review - Report of the. Chairperson of the Finance Committee 

and the Chief Executive — Finance (King Hi: 91-124) © Ss 

The review should provide an overview of the institution’s budget process and 

indicate the means whereby the process, specifically as regards resource allocation, 

- promotes the attainment of the strategic goals and objectives of the institution and 

- promotes operational sustainability in the foreseeable future. The effect of the 

budgetary control mechanism in maintaining financial discipline throughout the 

institution should also be addressed. The review will also address salient features in 

the financial statements in relation to the financial condition of the institution and the 

extent to which the achievement of primary strategic objectives are reflected in these 

statements. There should be a statement to distinguish the financial consequences 

between the use of assets representing restricted and those representing unrestricted 

(Council-controlled) funds. 

The report is signed by the Chairperson of the Finance Committee and the Chief 

Financial Officer.
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CHAPTER 4 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4,1 Content of Annual Financial Report component of Annual Report 

The report comprises: (king Ti: 135-137) 

° Council's statement of responsibility for the financial statements 

e Report of the auditors 

The following statements and reports comprise the sections of the Annual Report on 
which the auditors present an opinion: (Report of the auditors on the annual financial 
statements): 

° | Statement of accounting policies relevant to the financial statements 

° Consolidated balance sheet 

e@ - Aconsolidated statement showing all changes in funds, 

° Consolidated income statement | 

° Consolidated cash flow statement. 

° Notes of explanation and elaboration to the financial statements
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42. . Example of typical.Council’s. statement of its responsibility for the Financial 

Statements (King I: 38-39; 125-133) — 

The Council is responsible for the. preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the financial 

statements of the ABC Technikon/University. — SO 

‘The financial statements presented on pages nn to nn of this Annual Report for yyyy, have 

‘been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice as prescribed by the Minister of Education in the regulations in terms of 

the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997), as. amended, and include amounts 

based on judgements and estimates made by the management. The Council has also prepared 

other information as required to be included in this Annual Report and is responsible for both 

its accuracy and consistency with the financial statements. 

The “going concern” basis has been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. 

The Council has no reason to believe that the ABC Technikon/University is. not a “going 

concern” in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash resources. The 

viability of the institution is supported by the content of the financial statements. , 

The financial statements have been audited by XYZ & Co. who have been given unrestricted 

access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of meetings of the Council 

and all its committees. The Council believes that all representations made to the independent 

auditors during their audit were valid and appropriate. 

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The consolidated financial statements on pages 7m to nn of this Annual Report were 

approved by Council on dd mm yyyy and signed on its behalf by: 

A.ACADEMIC | | _ BMONEY 
Principal * , Director Finance 

A SHARP 
Chairman of Council 

The ABC Technikon/University 
City/Town 

03-016060—D
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4.3 — 

4.4 

Duties/Responsibilities of independent auditors 

(King I: 38-41; 42-45) 
In the Higher Education Act (Act 101 of 1997), as. amended, the requirements for . Annual Reporting are specified, as is the requirement for the financial statements to be audited by an independent professionally registered auditor. The South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and the South African Statements of Accepted Auditing Standards (SAAS) will be applicable. 

Report of independent auditors to Council of higher education institution — 

Example of unqualified report 

To Members of Council of HEI 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated annual financial statements set out on pages nn to nn for the financial year ended 31 December 20nn. These financial statements are the. responsibility of the HEI's Council. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

SCOPE 

We conducted our audit in accordance with statements of South African Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that ¢ financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes: 

. examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the . .financial statements. . ee - 
° assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made ‘by management, and 
° evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

AUDIT OPINION | 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of the HEI at 31 December 20nn and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and in the manner required by the Minister of Education in terms of section 41 of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997), as amended. 

XYZ & Co., | | 
Registered Accountants and Auditors 
Chartered Accountants (SA) 

. Date - 

Address



_ -.STAATSKOERANT, 29 AUGUSTUS 2003 °- Nd, 25407 39 

4.5 Consolidated financial statements - Introduction =~ ie A 

__ A set of consolidated financial statements for each individual university/téchnikon and 

. © < the: entities ‘in respect of which consolidation is required,’ must be prepated and 

- Sgubmitted ‘to ‘the Department of’ Education within ‘six’ months of the énd of the 

~-respective financial period. SP EE SE GES al 

A separate set of financial statements for the institution as'an entity will’ be prepared 

for institutions that require these. 

In respect of every set of annual consolidated financial statements the adopted 

financial policies that were applicable to these statements must be disclosed in order 

that readers of the statements will be able to understand both the basis and the. means 

of measurement of their content. Whenever a particular accounting policy is changed, 

_ the fact that there has been a change must be referenced... . 

4.6 - Statement of accounting policies relevant to financial statements 

Extract of the accounting. and other relevant policies being applied at a higher 

education institution and forming part of the Annual Report of that institution. The 

adoption of these policies is part of the governance responsibilities of its Council. 

- The following are adapted from extracts of relevant accounting and other policies from 

a document prepared and published by PriceWaterhouseCoopers and the Committee of 

Technikon Principals. [Additions and replacements are included in conformity with 

the most recent accounting standards’ statements and exposure drafts. Much of the 

content of these was prepared by Prof. A Watson of UCT. Additional information and 

comments are also included for purposes of clarification| 

These policies are included as examples and guidelines only, both in respect of items 

that are mandatory, e.g. statements on accounting policies (which, as stated above, are 

an integral part of the financial statements), reporting on institutional governance and 

_also in respect of items of voluntary disclosure. Therefore, those who prepare financial 

statements will make use of the terminology and set out of these extracts to suit their 

-particularneeds)s oo oe . 

The references in the left margin of the statement of financial policies represent 

the paragraph of the South African Statements of Generally Accepted 

- Accounting Practice (standards) in which the disclosure requirements appear, for 

_ example, “AC103.40” indicates AC103, paragraph 40.. . : 

The accounting policies and notes to the accounts form an integral ‘part of these 

consolidated financial statements. 

  

  

The opportunity has been taken to provide a reasonably full description and a complete set 

of accounting policies, and certain subjects may not necessarily be applicable to a particular 

reporting institution; this has been done to assist in the objective of ensuring that this 

publication is a useful resource. The disclosure of accounting policies for items that may not 

be appropriate to certain institutions provides a useful resource for other institutions to which 

these items could well be applicable. .   
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The principal accounting policies adopted in preparation of consolidated financial ‘Statements are set out below and are consistent with previous years unless specifically stated otherwise: 
— 

AC 131,132 1 Basis of preparation 

~*~ Consolidated financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with and - comply with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and in the manner required by the Minister of Education in terms of 
section 41 ‘of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997), as - amended. The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the 
historical cost basis as modified by the revaluation of certain property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and investment properties. . 

AC 111 | ‘1.2 Revenue recognition 

State appropriations and grants for general purposes are recognised as 
income in the financial year to which the subsidy relates. Appropriations for 
specific purposes, i.e., capital expenditure; are brought into the appropriate 
fund at the time they are available for expenditure for the purpose provided. 
If the funding is provided in advance of the specified requirement, (i.e., the 
institution does not have immediate legal entitlement to it) the relevant 
amount is retained as a non-current liability. . 

_ Income received for designated specific purposes will arise from contracts, 
grants, donations and income on specifically purposed endowments. In all 
instances any such income is recognised in the income statement in the 
‘financial period when entitled to use of those funds. Thus, funds included as 
income but which will not be used until some specified future period or 
occurrence, are transferred from the income statement to an appropriate 
fund and held in that fund until the financial period in which the funds can | 
be used, at which time the amount is transferred back to income through the 
income statement. Prior to that time the amount is appropriately grouped in — 
one of the restricted funds comprising aggregate funds (held in trust). 

Tuition fees are recognised in the income in the period to which they relate 
and at the time these are formally billed.-The income must be recognised as 
realisable and, to the extent that it is not, provision is realistically made for. 
the estimated unrealisable amount. Deposits provided by prospective 
students are treated as current liabilities until the amount is billed as due. 

Interest is recognised on a time allocation basis, taking account of the 
principal outstanding and the effective rate over the period to maturity, 

_ when it is determined that such income will accrue to the university, 

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 

Interest, dividends and other income received or due on assets representing 
- endowment and trust funds must be recognised as income in the income
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oo statement from which the respective amounts are transferred, if required in’ 

terms of the establishment of the respective funds, to the respective funds. 

and the amounts appropriately re-invested. 

1.3 Income statement: separate activities 

The format of the income statement is designed to disclose separately: 

(i) the utilisation of resources that are under the absolute control of 

Council . . 
(ii) the utilisation of those resources which is prescribed in terms of the 

legal requirements of the providers of such resources . 

(iii) the provision of accommodation for students and/or staff 

AC 131, 132, 2, Consolidation - 
409, 412 Doe Fa - 

. ‘Subsidiary entities are those entities over which the HEI has the power, 

directly or indirectly, to exercise control. All subsidiaries are consolidated, 

except where control is expected to be temporary or where there are long-_ 

term restrictions on the transferability of funds. An entity, not a subsidiary 

as defined above, the income of which, other than investment income, is 

intended for the ultimate use of the institution, is also consolidated. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effective control is 

transferred to the HEI and until they are disposed of or control ceases. 

All inter-entity/undertakings transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses 

‘and deficits are eliminated. Where necessary, accounting policies for 

subsidiary entities/undertakings have been changed to ensure consistency 

with the policies adopted by the HEI. Separate disclosure is made of the 

‘minority interest that is measured at the fair value of the net assets acquired. 

(See Appendix C for detailed consideration of the factors in assessing 

whether an entity is to be included in the consolidation.) 

AC 110,403 3 Investments in associates 

Investments in associated undertakings are accounted for by the equity . 

method of accounting. These are undertakings in which the HEI has a long- 

+. term financial interest and. exercises significant influence (but not control) 

over the financial and operational policies of that company. The HEI's share 

of post acquisition reserves is” recognised in the consolidated financial 

statements. . a 

_ The equity accounted profit/loss in the income statement is adjusted for the 

effect on any fair value adjustments at acquisition, unrealised profits, 

differences in accounting policies and goodwill amortisation. 

AC 119 im Joint ventures 

A joint venture is-an entity over which the HEI has contractual joint control. - 

_ The HEI's interest in a joint venture is accounted for on a proportionate 

consolidation basis. Under this method, the HEI includes its share of the
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joint venture’s revenue and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows in the relevant components of the financial statements on a line-by-line basis. 

Foreign currencies 

‘Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions: gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the income statement in the year in which they arise. Such balances are translated at year-end exchange rates, 

Forward exchange contracts are entered into in order to protect the HEI from 
movements in exchange rates. Exchange gains and losses from a forward 
exchange contract taken out in anticipation of a transaction, are initially 
recognised in aggregate funds and subsequently capitalised as part of the transaction cost, as they are a cash flow hedge. 

All other exchange gains and losses relating to forward exchange contracts 
or any other hedge transactions are recognised in the income statement in 
the same period as the exchange differences on items covered by the hedge 
transactions. Costs on such contracts are amortised over the life of the hedge 
contract. Gains and losses on contracts that are no longer designated as cash 
flow hedges are included in the income statement. 

Financial instruments 

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank 
balances, investments, receivables, trade creditors, leases and borrowings. 
The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual 
policy statements associated with each item. 

Interest rate swap agreements protect the HEI from adverse movements in 
interest rates. Any differential to be paid or received on an interest rate 
Swap agreement is recognised as a component of interest revenue or expense 
over the period of the agreement. Gains and losses on early termination of 
interest rate swaps or on repayment of the borrowing are taken to the 
income statement as a component of interest revenue or expense. 

Disclosures about financial instruments to which the HEI is a party are 
provided in the Notes to the financial statements (see page 39). 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair 
value. of the HEI's share of the net assets of an acquired associated 
undertaking at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions occurring 
on or after 1 January 1995 is reported in the balance sheet as an intangible 
asset and is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated 
useful life. Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to 1 January 1995
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was charged in full to’an appropriate find; such goodwill has not been 

retroactively. capitalised and amortised. bow 

Goodwill is generally amortised over its useful life. [Where goodwill is 

amortised over a period exceeding 20 years, the HEI should disclose. the 

reasons including describing the factor(s) that played a significant role in 

determining the useful life of the goodwill. ] - 

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually and written down for 

impairment losses that should be recognised if identified, as the recoverable 

amount is based on the projected future cash flows and therefore must take 

into account the longer-term projections. The carrying value used to 

determine the gain or loss on disposal of an entity includes the unamortised 

balance of goodwill relating to the entity disposed of or, for acquisitions - 

prior to 1 January 1995, any such goodwill previously charged to retained 

earnings. . . Ce 

AC 129 7 Research and development 

Research and development expenditure is recognised as an expense except 

that costs incurred on development projects are recognised as development 

assets (intangible assets) to the extent that such expenditure is expected to 

have future benefits. However, development costs initially recognised as an 

expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. 

Development costs that have been capitalised are amortised from the 

commencement of the commercial production of the product to which they 

relate on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected benefit, but 

not exceeding five years. 

This does not relate to research that is performed on behalf of a third party, 

but to research that is for the benefit of the HEI and from which it plans to 

develop some sort of product or patent. os . 

AC 129 8 Computer software development costs - 

AC 406 — - 
- 

. | Generally, costs associated with developing computer- software programs 

are recognised as an expense as incurred. However, costs that are clearly 

associated with an identifiable and unique product that will be controlled by 

the HEI and have a probable benefit exceeding the cost beyond one year, are 

recognised as an intangible asset. Associated costs include staff costs of the - 

development team and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 

Expenditure that enhances and extends the benefits .of computer software 

. programs beyond their original specifications and lives is recognised as a_ 

capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software. 

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised 

using the straight-line method over their useful lives, not exceeding a period 

of 3 years.
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~AC129 . .9 Other intangible assets 

Expenditure on acquired patents, trademarks and licences is capitalised and amortised using the straight-line method over. their useful lives, generally over 20 years. Intangible assets are not revalued. 
a The carrying amount of each intangible asset is reviewed annually and _ adjusted for impairment where it is considered necessary. 

AC 133 

AC 133; 09 

AC 133: 70 

AC 133: 20 

. AC 133: 104(a) 

10 

[Where an intangible asset is amortised over more than 20 years, the HEI should disclose the reasons including describing the factor(s) that played a significant role in determining the useful life of that asset] 

Investments 

Investments are divided into three categories: 
(i) trading investments . 
(ii) held-to-maturity investments and 
(iii) available-for-sale investments 
(iv) loans and receivables originated by the enterprise. 
Investments exclude entities of which the operating results are included in the consolidated financial, statements, i.e., subsidiary, joint venture and associated entities. oe . 

| Held-to-maturity investments are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. Other than loans and receivables originated by 
the enterprise, the positive intent and ability of the enterprise is to hold the investment to maturity. These investments are recognised at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method. 

All investments, other than held-to-maturity investments are measured at fair value without any deductions for transaction costs that may be incurred on purchase or sale or other means of disposal. The fair value of marketable securities is market value. Market value is calculated by reference to 
Securities Exchange quoted selling prices at the close of business on the 
‘balance sheet date. If the fair value of an investment cannot be determined, 

_ the investment should be measured at cost if there is no fixed maturity, or at amortised cost if there is a fixed maturity. 

Trading investments are investments that are part of a portfolio of similar 
assets for which there is a pattern of trading for the purposes of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price. 

Adjustments to the fair value of investments classified as trading 
investments are recognised in the income statement in the year in which 
they arise. Trading investments are classified as current assets. 

- An investment is classified as “available for sale investment” if it is not a - trading investment or a held to maturity investment.
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AC133: 104(>) | Adjustments to the fair value of “available for sale investments” are 

recognised in the revaluation reserve until such time as the investment is 

sold, in which case it will be recognised in the income statement. 

“Available for sale” investments are classified as non-current assets. Where 

necessary impairment losses on “available for sale investments” are 

‘recognised: as a debit to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a. 

credit balance relating to investments. Any excess is recognised in the 

income statement. ae 

Alternatively, if directly related to specific restricted endowment or trust 

funds, credited/adjusted to the appropriate fund. 

~AC1330— Loans and receivables originated by the institution are created by providing 

oe - money, goods or services directly to a debtor. Such amounts are not 

included with held-to-maturity investments but are classified separately. 

AC135 —sAvestmeent properties | 

Investment properties are held to earn income anid appreciate capital value. 

Excluded are properties used by the HET, as well as those being constructed 

or developed for future use. 

Investment properties are treated as non-current investments and carried at 

market value determined periodically by external independent professional 

-valuers. Investment properties are not subject to depreciation. Increases in 

their carrying amount are recognised in the income statement. 

AC1230 11 Property, plant and equipment 

All property (including, optionally, investment properties), plant and 

‘equipment is recorded at cost, except for donations that are valued by 

external independent valuers, taking into account depreciation. . 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of 

each asset, or the revalued amounts, to their residual values over their 

estimated useful life as follows: . 

- Buildings 50 years 

Vehicles ° 5 -10 years "- 

Furniture and equipment 5 - 15 years 

Computer equipment: 
Mainframe and networks --s«5 4 - «OG years 

PC's, notebooks and other 3 - 5 years: 

Library items, museum and art collections are written off in the year of 

acquisition. ; . . 

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life. 

AC123, AC130 Routine maintenance costs are charged to income as incurred. Costs of 

major maintenance or overhaul of an item of property, plant or equipment 

are recognised as an expense, except if the cost had been recognised as a
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AC 105 

AC 108 
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separate part of the cost of the asset, and that amount has already been depreciated to reflect the benefits that have been replaced or restored. 

To the extent that the use of an asset is impaired for reason of deferred maintenance, an additional depreciation provision is created by a charge against income, the accumulated amount of which is included in the depreciation deduction to arrive at the carrying value of the asset. 

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. ‘ . 

Gains and losses on ‘disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amounts and are taken into account in determining operating profit. . 

Interest costs on borrowings to finance the construction of property, plant and equipment that qualify (AC 114), are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the property for its intended __ use, as part of the cost of the asset. 

12 Accounting for leases 

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the HEI assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the estimated fair value of the ~ leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the underlying lease 

13 

payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest element of the finance charge is charged to the income statement over the lease period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leasing contracts are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. 

Leases of assets, under which all risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under. operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, . any payment required to be made to ‘the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The carrying amounts of different classifications of inventory are disclosed. — .
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- 14 Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is 

made and is provided for any receivables that are likely to be irrecoverable, 

"based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end. Actual bad 

_debts are written off during the year in which they are identified. 

AC 101 15 Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents 

comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and investments in 

money market instruments, net of bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet, 

bank overdrafts are included in borrowings in current liabilities. 

AC 130 16 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the HEI has a present legal or constructive. 

obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be 

made. : ; 

‘The HEI recognises the estimated liability on all products still under 

warranty at the balance sheet date. This provision is calculated on the basis 

of service histories. Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service 

leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made 

for the estimated liability for accumulated annual leave and long-service 

leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet 

‘date. This latter provision distinguishes between the non-current and the 

current liability portions. 

AC 116 17. Pension obligations 

The HEI operates a defined benefit plan, the assets of which are held in a 

separate trustee-administered fund. The pension plan is funded by payments 

‘from employees and by the HEI, taking account of the recommendations of 

independent qualified actuaries. 

The pension accounting costs of the defined benefit plan is assessed using 

the projected unit credit method. Under this method the cost of providing 

pensions is charged to the income statement to spread the regular cost over 

the service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of qualified 

actuaries. Se 

The pension obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated 

~~ future cash outflows using interest rates of government securities that have 

terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. The net 

difference between the expected return on plan assets and the interest factor" 

arising from discounting the obligation is recognised under other operating
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expenditure. The return on the plan assets and the interest on the interest cost arising from the increase in the obligation as the anticipated payment date is one year closer, will largely offset each other'if the amount is funded. 

If the benefit is unfunded, like medical aids, this will give rise to an interest . cost that will be significant, as it will equal the obligation times the interest rate. There is no specific requirement as to how those amounts are to be treated, but disclosure is required of the line item in which the amount is included. For other types of provisions, this has to be in interest, so consistency implies that the same treatment should apply to the medical aid provision. The other option is that the amount will be included in staff costs. - ‘The “current”. and “non-current” components of such provisions are separated. 

All actuarial gains and losses are spread forward over the average remaining 
service lives of employees (An option is not to recognise amounts that jall within a corridor of 10% of plan assets or the obligation, and to recognise only a portion of the balance). so 

The HEI's contributions to the defined contribution plans are charged to the 

18 

income statement in the year to which they relate. 

Other post-retirement obligations 

The HEI provides post-retirement health care benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually based on the employee's remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment, using an accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension plans. Valuations of these obligations are carried out by independent qualified actuaries. The “current” and “non-current” 
components of'such provisions are separated.
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‘CHAPTER 5 

_ EXAMPLES OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

Introduction 

‘The following are the prescribed formats and content of the Balance Sheet, Statement 

of Changes in Funds, Income Statement and Cash Flow Statement required to be 

submitted to the Department of Education as prescribed by the Minister of Education 

in terms of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997), as amended. 

ALL AMOUNTS MUST APPEAR AS R'000s (shown to the nearest thousand — 

rands) a | 

. The following must apply in the preparation of the Financial Statements: - 

‘Application of South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice: 

The financial statements are to be prepared in conformity with the published South 

African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. 

The wording of the financial policies included above are illustrative only. HEIs must 

comply with the current statements and, as GAAP evolves, must adapt their 

accounting policies accordingly. It is the responsibility of the designated finance 

division staff in institutions to read and keep up-to-date with GAAP. 

Income Statement 

The statement is prepared on’a reporting basis that groups three distinct activity types. 

Income and expenditure shown as “Council Controlled” relate to income. over which 

the Council of the institution has absolute legal control and discretion of use. Any 

funds of “designated income” relate to unrestricted income that the Council has 

designated for purposes that it defines. Decisions in this regard can always be changed 

- at the discretion of the Council. Such income and expenditure should, therefore, be 

grouped under the heading: “Council Controlled - Unrestricted Use”. 

_ “Specifically purposed income” relates to funds that have been provided in terms of 

legally enforceable requirements of the purpose for which they may be expended. The 

Council thus has no discretion/control in this regard. This restriction may result from a 

contract (e.g. contract research), a condition ofa grant (e.g. NRF grant), a bequest (i.e. 

a testamentary provision in a will), or a condition stipulated in a notarial deed of 

donation. If the funds received are stipulated as being for an “endowment fund”, the 

income from the respective investment will thus be for a “specifically funded 

activity”. 

The special purpose state subsidy for “rates & taxes” is a particular case and will not 

fall into this category but within the “unrestricted” grouping.
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It will be necessary to include in the Notes to the Financial Statements details of the sources of government/state subsidies and grants by source as follows: 

National Government Extra-budgetary Institutions . Social Security Funds Provincial Governments Local Governments 
Non-financial public corporations Financial public corporations 

“Education and General” comprises everything that is not included in “Student and staff accommodation”. 

“Student and staff accommodation” comprises income and costs relating to specifically funded accommodation for staff and students; plus income and costs relating to catering associated with the respective accommodation. The apportionment of income and/or expenditure may be essential to arrive at the relevant amounts. 

“Sales of goods and services” the definition used for the SAPSE system will apply. 

“Private gifts and grants” the definition used for the SAPSE system will apply. 

(The "SAPSE" (South African Post Secondary Education Information System) is being replaced by the Higher Education Management Information System (HEMIS) but the above original SAPSE definitions will still be applicable for the time being.) 

All “Personnel: expenditure” must comprise the total cost of “packages” [cost to the institution] plus taxes and statutory levies (such as UIF, Skills Development Levy, Regional Services levies) 

NOTE: It is required to disclose by way of a note to the financial statements 
the separation of the “Personnel Expenditure” amount as follows: 

Remuneration including all bonuses, allowances, leave and medical benefits, 
including provisions made; 
Taxes and statutory levies, Separating UIF, skills development levy and regional services levies. 

Introduction to consolidated financial statements 

The following have been drafted for the sole. purpose of indicating the required _ content and format of a set of financial statements for a university or technikon in South Africa for submission to the Department of Education in terms of the Higher Education Act. 

They are, however, not illustrations of an exact set of finalised financial statements for every institution. If, for example, an institution does not have an amount for a line item appearing in any of the following statements, that line will not appear on the statement for that institution, and if it has a line item that is considered necessary for _ Separate disclosure, the line item must be included. 

THE FORMAT, HOWEVER, IS TO BE FOLLOWED EXACTLY. |
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The XYZ Higher Education Institution 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 Decem ber 20nn (all amounts in R’000s) 

  

  

            

Notes |. 20nn 20nn . 20nn-1 ‘20nn-1 

ASSETS 
1312 291 1192 534 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS | 
1076 909 1020 419 

Property, Plant and Equipment 1 279 571. 286 464 a 

Intangible Assets : xX 0 0 

Non-Current Investments 2 784 $10 724 324 

Non-Current Receivables 3 12 528 9 631 

Student Loans 
12 528 9631 

- Other Non-Current Receivables’ 0 0 

CURRENT ASSETS 
235 382. 172 115 

Inventories 
4. 6 393 5 324 : 

Accounts Receivable, Prepaid Amounts, ‘etc. 5 173 196 133 589 

Students for Fees 
5 430 6684 

Other Amounts 
167 766 126 905 

Marketable Securities XX 0 0 

Cash; Bank and Cash Equivalents 6. 55.793 33 202 

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 
1312291 1.192 534 

FUNDS UTILISED/AVAILABLE 
1071 760 . 989 060 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE). 194 761 211 730 

Restricted Use Funds 
474 203 448 574 

Student Loan Funds 
12528 9631 

Student Residences Funds 
4257 14949" 

Other — Education and General”. 457 418 423 994 

Unrestricted Use Funds ~ Education and General 402 796 328 756 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 
88 174 81 965 81965 

Borrowings — Interest Bearing 7 88 174 , 81 965 

Post-Employment Benefits/Obligations 
XX 0 0 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
152 357 121509 

Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 8 149 836 117 807 

Provisions for Post-Employment Obligations XX 0 . 0 

Provisions for Liabilities — Other XX 0 0 

Student Deposits 
8 1 867 1 760 

Current portion of Borrowings 7 654 0 

Short Term Borrowing — Bank Overdraft 6 0 1 942   
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The XYZ Higher Education Institution . ; Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds for the year ended 31 December 20nn (R’000s) 
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DESCRIPTION N Accumnlated | Contingency [ Endowment SUB- Donor Contract - Trust SUB- Student Residence Fixed 
0 Fand Fund Fund TOTAL Fund Fond. Fond TOTAL Loan Fund Asset TOTAL 
t Unrestricted | Unrestricted Unrestricted/ A Restricted Restricted Restricted B Fund Restricted Fund Cc 

Use — Use Designated . Use Use Use. — : Use PPE 
e Use 

. Ss 
: Balance at 1-1-20nn 4 703 133 311 190 742 328 756 148 904 176 728 98 362 | 423994 9 631 14949 | 211730 989 060 

Investments — Fair 
‘ . : . 

value adjustment XX 18 321 31 146 49 467 : 3321 |. 3321 52 788 
Capital gains - sale , 

of investments XX 8 331 8 331 
: 8 331 

Income from 
investments 4276 10 072 14 348 23 974 28 453 16 283 68 710 2 897 925 86 880 
Net Surplus/ 

. Deficit(-) after 
: 

. investment income 1894 1 894 -26 735 -25 432 -13 042 | -65209 -11 617 -74 932 
Funds utilised written 

: off 

-16 969 -16 969 
Net transfers from . 

/ 
Income Statement 

25 996 46 476 28 720 | 101 192 101 192 
Transfers debit 14 : ~49 285 -25 305 -74 590 a -74 590 
Balance at 

; 31-12-20nn 6 597 164 239 231 960 402 796 122 854 200 920 133 644 | 457418 12 528 4257 | 194761 1 071 760 

                            The above statement of changes in funds is presented for the reporting year only — in compliance with GAAP the comparative figures for the previous year should be provided, 
An alternative form of presentation may be where individual funds comprise both identifiable restricted and unrestricted amounts. In such cases each fund will be contained in 
an individual column and both opening and closing balances must be separated into 'Unrestricted/Designated Use’ and ‘Restricted Use'.. 
NOTES:- . 

: : 1. The headings (or a note) should be adequately descriptive of the nature governing the restrictions in each case _ 2. Sub-Total A reflects the aggregate of available unrestricted/designated funds 3. Sub-Total B reflects the aggregate of restricted funds . : 4, The “Fixed Asset Fund PPE” is not classified and reflects aggregate expenditure on the asset item PPE : S. Ifa fund had been set aside for new, replacement or renewal of PPE and will have been derived from council designated amounts or from funds received for specific purposes this should be disclosed as 2 separate (Funds for PPE) fund, / 6. The XXs that appear in the “Notes” column indicate that, where the detail of the item appearing on this statement is not clear from other statements or notes to the accounts, an explanatory note must be included in the “Notes to the accounts”, 
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5.6 
The XYZ Higher Education Institution 

  

  

  

Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 20nn (R'000s) 

<} - EDUCATION AND GENERAL—— > 

N COUNCIL SPECIFICALLY STUDENT 

O | CONTROLLED FUNDED SUB- AND STAFF 

TE ACTIVITIES ACCOMMO- : 

oe : TOTAL DATION TOTAL 20nn-1 

UNRESTRICTED | RESTRICTED RESTRICTED , 

TOTAL INCOME 
754 779 - 403.903 1158 682 25.994 1184 676 1020 497 

RECURRENT ITEMS 738 748 403 903 1150351 25.994 1168 645 936375. 

State Appropriations- Subsidies and Grants 343 127 23 502 “ 366 629 0 366 629 -360 282 

Tuition and Other Fee Income 178 969 ‘ 0 178 969 25 994 204 963 188 422 

Income from Contracts - 131 584 186.011 317.595 317 595 276 126 

For research : 130 798 182 895 313 693 313 693 276 126 

For Other Activities 786 3116 ‘3.902 3.902 | 0 

Sales of Goods and Services 27 098 10010 “37 108 37 108 - 44423 

Private Gifts and Grants 44131 115 670 156 801 91250 67121 

SUB-TOTAL. . 721 909 387064 |° 1057102 25.994 1083 096 824 830 

Interest and Dividends . . 9 16 839 68 710 85 549 _0 85 549 84 122 

NON-RECURRENT ITEMS 16.031 0 16 031 ') ‘16031 0 

Profit/Loss on disposal of PPE 0 0 oO 0 0 6 

Profit/Loss on Disposal of Investments $331 0 8331 0 8831 : 0 

Disposal of Expensed Equipment . 10 7700 Q 7700 Q 7-700 0 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE ° 738 537 299 210 1037 747 37611 1075 358 972.780 

RECURRENT ITEMS 720 556 145 095 865 651 34611 900 262 972 780 

Personnel : fo 11 372 572 113 736 486 308 7842 494 150 445 919 

Academic professional ‘ 215 415 104 861 320 276 320 276 323 239 

Other Personnel 157.157 8875 166 032 71842 173 874 122 680 

Other Current Operating Expenses 12 279 991 31359 311350 19 544 330 894 463 119 

Depreciation Provision : , , 1 51.225 Q 51225 6 500 57725: 51231 

Depreciation - Additional Provision 1 1275 0) 1275 725 __2.000 1000 

SUB-TOTAL - . . 711 063 145 095 850 158 34611 884 769 961 269 

Finance Costs . 13 15 493 15 493 9 15 493 11511 

NON-RECURRENT ITEMS 17981 154 115 _ 172.096 3 000 175 096 0 

Extra Ordinary Operating Expenses 0 154 115 . 154115 0 154 115 ~ 0 

Personnel — Prior Year Adjustments 0 0. 0 0 0 

| Capital Expenditure Expensed 12.981 “ 0 12.981 0 12.981 0 

Depreciation — Additional Provision: 1- 5.000 0 | _5000 3 000 8 000 0 

‘ NET SURPLUS/DEFICIT (-) Before Transfers | 16 242 * 104 693 120 935 “11617 109 318 47717 

TRANSFER — RESTRICTED FUNDS NET 101192 __7101.192 101 192 0 

Amounts Received not expended: To Funds -101 152 -101 192 _-101 192 . 0 

Amounts Spent from prior year receipts: From Funds 0 0 9 0 

NET SURPLUS/@MEFICIT(-)) After Transfers 16 242° 3501 19 743 -11 617 8126 47717     
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

  

  

    
  

NB: The separation between Recurrent and Non-Recurrent Income & Expenditure items must be strictly observed. Consistent comparisons cannot be made 

unless this is done. The inclusion of prior year obligations for accumulated leave and post employment benefits are cases in point.   
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The X¥Z Higher Education Institution 

000s) 
  

    

  
    

    

    

  

    

    

  
    
        
        
        
          

    
            

      

          
        
  
              
    
    

      
      
  
            

      
          
      

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 20nn (R' 

NOTES 20nn 20nn-1 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Retained from /(atilised by) Operations 

18 21 931 (10 779) 
Investment Income less Cost of Finance 

Finance Income 
85 549 84 122 Finance Costs 

(15 493) 1 511) 
NET INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

91 987 61 832 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 

(82 521) (60 472) Purchase of Non-Current Investments 
G15 701) (562 185) 

Disposals of Property, Plant and Equipment 
3 870 21200 

Disposals of Non-Current Investments 
323 002 479 684 (ncrease)/Decrease in Student Loans 
(2 897) 1559 

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
(74 247) (120 214) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net Amount capitalised to/(expended from) from Reserves 

20 483 95 735 
Increase/(Decrease) in Interest Bearing Botrowings 

6 208 (5 540) 
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINAN. CING ACTIVITIES 

26 691 90 195 
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

24 533 31813 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 31 260 (553) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 
55 793 31 260               NB: Expenditures on renewal of property, plant and equipment should be deducted from cash generated by operations   
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AC 123 

AC 128 

AC 128 

AC 100 
AC 129: 

_ STAATSKOERANT, 29 AUGUSTUS 2003 No. 25407 -55 

Notes of explanation and elaboration to Financial Statements 

The numbered notes that follow relate directly to the content of the financial 

statements above and are numbered accordingly. In addition examples of notes that 

do not apply to the above statements but could apply in certain circumstances, are 

included in italics and are all ‘numbered’ XX. The wording and format of the notes 

are partly based on a document produced jointly by PriceWaterhouseCoopers and 

the Committee of Technikon Principals. 

Reference to the appropriate South African Statements of Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice is essential for the preparers of financial statements. 

(In the notes all amounts are shown in Rands thousands (R'000s) unless otherwise stated) 

‘ 

1 -Property,. plant and equipment 

Land & Furniture & Computer Vehicles Library-, Total 

  

  

  

buildings equipment equipment Museum- 

. . : . and Art 
collections 

Year ended 31 December 20nn a 

Opening net book amount 215 725 47 159 18725 = 4855 - 286 464 

Additions , 14 975 19165 °° 10934 2854 ° 16774 64 702 

Disposals - : (159) (2.523) (928) (260) - (3870) 

Depreciation charge (23 064) (18 591) (7382) _ (1,914) (46774) __ (67725) 

Closing net book amount 207 477 45 210 21349 §535_—- 279 571 

At 31 December 20nn , , : 

- Cost or valuation 363 790 94 347 40 860 10593: 127147 636737 

Accumulated depreciation, (156 313) (49.137) (19511) (5058) _(127 147) (357 166) 

Net book amount 207 477 _ 45 210 21 349 5 535 - 279 571 
  

The depreciation charge includes amounts of ‘additional depreciation' provided in respect of deferred 

maintenance resulting in the ‘impairment’ in the use of a respective asset. - 

{Although this example does not include it, institutions are required to provide a statement of comparatives of 

movements on PPE in terms of AC128.] 

XX | Included in the depreciation charge for furniture and equipment as an amount of R1 075 for research 

"equipment that is no longer needed. The recoverable amount (that is, the carrying amount after deducting 

the impairment charge) represents the net selling price, determined by reference to market prices for 

equivalent assets. 

Additions include R850 (20nn-1 - R500) for vehicles leased under finance leases and disposals include R2,260 (20nn-1 

- R1,435) vehicles sold under finance eases. : : 

Leased assets included above comprise vehicles under financial leases: 
20nn 20nn-1 

Cost - capitalised finance leases 8 634 . 6190 

Accumulated depreciation / . ; / (3 738) (2 926) 

Net book amount . . 4896 5 148 

Bank borrowings are secured on properties to the value of R (Note XX). 

XX Intangible assets 

(Intangible assets would not be a standard part of the financial statements of an HEI, but are shown for 

illustrative purposes as the possibility exists that some HEls may commence R&D activities.)
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AC 128 

AC 110 

AC 125 

AC 101 

AC 133 

XX 

2 

3 

GOVERNMENT GAZETTE, 29 AUGUST 2003 

Goodwill Deferred . Other Total 
costs development intangible 

. assets 

Year ended 31 December 20nn 
Opening net book amount 
Additions . 
Transferred to patents 
Impairment charge (Note XX) 
Amortisation charge (Note XX) 

Closing net book amount 
At 31 December 20nn 
Cost 

Accumulated amortisation 

Net book amount 

[Institutions are exempted from providing a statement of comparatives of movements on Intangible assets as required by AC128.] - 

AC123 does not strictly require the above reconciliation of movements on intangible assets for the comparative year. : 
: 

The impairment charge in 20nn represents the Sull write-off of goodwill and deferred development costs as part of the restructuring of one of the faculties. 

Deferred development costs principally comprise internally generated expenditure on R&D development costs on major projects where it is reasonably anticipated that the costs will be recovered through future commercial activity. Other intangible assets comprise acquired patents and trademarks. 

Investments in associated companies - 

Information required to be disclosed about investments in associated companies is set out in ACII0.27. Investments in associated companies may not be common for HEIs but would be included Sor instances where an HEI does have shares in a company in which it exercises significant influence. This influence might have been obtained through a share endowment to the HEL 

Non-current investments 

    

20nn 20nn-1 
Opening net book amount . 724 323 641 822 Additions 

330 700 562 185 (Disposals) (323002) = = (479 684) " Revaluation Surplus / 52 788 . 0 Closing net book amount 
784810 724 323 

Market Value/Net book value 784 810 789 719 

Investments comprise marketable securities that are revalued annually at the close of business on 31 December by reference to Stock Exchange quoted prices. The market value approximates the fair value. Revaluation surpluses and deficits are taken to revaluation and other reserves. 

[NB. The note on Non-Current Investments must include detail of the movement resulting from revaluation of this asset. This should include a reconciliation of the balances at the beginning and end of the financial period.] 

Non-current receivables 

20nn 20nn-1 

Student loans , 12 528 9631 Refundable contributions made to NSFAS - 
Loans to employees : 

The current receivables relating to the above items are shown in Note XX. All non-current receivables are due within 3 years from the balance sheet date. The weighted average interest rates on receivables (current and non-current) were as follows: 

Student loans : . 7.1% 6.8%
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Refundable contributions made to NSFAS : 6.0% 5.5% 

Loans to employees) ~ - ‘ . 8.7%. “8.5% 

Allloans advanced to employees during the year are unsecured 

Inventories . ' 20nn 20nn-1 

Stationery, technical inventories, study material, cleaning material, etc. 6 393 5 324 

Stationery 
Technical inventories 

Cleaning material 

Study materials 

Food 

Receivables and prepayments . . . 20nn -. 20nn-1 

Student debtors 26 930 28 488 

State subsidies and grants a . 23 222 . 5 325 

Prepayments / 14 209 15269 

Loans to employees : 12 464 _ 16 673 

Car scheme loans 2 485 4635 

Other receivables : 115 385 85 002 

Provision for irrecoverable debt (21499) (21 803) 

____173 196 __ 133 589 

Marketable securities 
20nn 20nn-1 

Opening net book amount 
Exchange differences 
Additions 
Decrease in market value 
Closing net book amount 

The HEI has a trading portfolio of marketable securities which are valued at a market value of R415,876 

at the close of business on 31 December nn by reference to Securities Exchange listed prices. 

Realised gains/losses and increases/decreases in market value are included in the line Finance cost' in 

the income statement (see Notes XX and XX). 

In the Cash flow statement proceeds from disposal (if any) of marketable securities comprise: 

20nn 20nn-I 

Net book amount 
Gain on sale (Note XX) 

Cash and cash equivalents 20nn 20nn-1 

Cash at bank and in hand 55793 33 202 

Bank overdrafts : (4 942) 

55.793 31260 

XX The weighted average effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 14.9% (nn-1: I 5.6%). 

7 Interest-bearing borrowings 20nn 20nn-1 

Long term borrowings ; 74396 81 965 

Secured loan . 14 432 - 

88 828 81 965 

Current portion transferred to current liabilities 654 = 

Total amount outstanding . . 88 174 81 965 

The long-term borrowing reflects the balance owing on loans raised to finance 

the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. The loans are fully secured by 

guarantees issued by the State. The annual costs of interest and redemption, 

together with the state subsidy on these payments, are disclosed in the 

Income Statement. 

The secured loan bears interest at 16,03% and is repayable in equal instalments 

57...
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of R239 481 over a period of ten years, The borrowing is secured by land and 
buildings with a book value of R15 508 138..- OE 

AC 118 XX Interest bearing borrowings : a 20nn 20nn-1 
Current 

‘Bank overdraft 

Bank borrowings. 
Debentures 

Lease liabilities 

- . Non-current 

Bank borrowings 
Debentures and other loans 

Lease liabilities : 

Total borrowings 

R12,366 (20nn-1 - R15,196). The bank borrowings are secured over certain of the land and buildings. Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event of 

Interest-bearing borrowings include secured liabilities (leases and bank borrowings) in a total amount of 

defauit. 

After taking account of interest rate Swaps, the interest rate exposure af the borrowing of the HEI was as follows: 
—_ 

- 20mm 20nn-1 Total borrowings: 
~ at fixed rates 
~ at floating- rates 

Weighted average effective interest rates: 
- bank overdrafts oe 17,6% £7.3% - bank borrowings 

17.0% 16.8% - debenture and other borrowings | «17.2% 17.0% - lease liabilities / / 17.4% - 17.0% 

The carrying amounts and fair values of certain interest-bearing borrowing are as follows: 

Carrying amounts Fair values 
20nn 20nn-1 20nn 20nn-1 

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 
Debentures and other loans -- - 

The fair values are based on discounted cash Slows using a discount vate based upon the borrowing rate that the council expects would be available to the HEI at the balance sheet date. The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings and lease obligations approximate their fair value. , 

Maturity of interest-bearing borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities): 

20nn 26nn-1 

Between | and 2 years 
Between 2 and 5 years 

Over 5 years 

Finance lease liabilities - minimum lease payments: 

Not later than 1 year 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 
Later than 5 years 

Future finance charges on finance leases 
Present value of finance lease liabilities 

' Representing lease liabilities: 
- current 
- non current



_ STAATSKOERANT, 29 AUGUSTUS 2003 No, 25407 59 
  

AC 101 

ACII6 

The present value of “finance lease liabilities may be analysed as follows: . 

Not later than I year 
_ Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 

Later than 5 years . 

Where these exist, disclosure must be made of the basis for determining contingent rent payments, 

renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses, and financing restrictions arising from leases. 

8 Trade and other payables 20nn 20nn-1 

Trade amounts payable ~ . a "149 836 117 807 

Student deposits = ee, oe oo _ 1867 1760 

XX 

151.703 119 567 beth Se 

Pension and other post retirement obligations 

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet: _ 

20nn 20nu-1 

Pension scheme 
Other post retirement benefits 

Pension scheme 

The HEI has established a pension scheme covering substantially all employees. The pension scheme is a. - 

final salary defined benefit plan and is funded. The assets of the funded plan are held independently of the 

HET's assets in a separate trustee administered fund. The scheme is valued by independent actuaries every 

three years. The latest actuarial valuations were carried out as at 31 December 20nn-2. ‘ 

XX The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are the following: 

20nn 2¢nn- 

Present value of funded obligations ..... , . 

Fair value of plan assets 

Present value of unfunded obligations - / 

Unrecognised actuarial gains / (losses) ~ 

Unrecognised prior service cost 

Liability in the balance sheet 

The amounts recognised in the income statement are the following: 
. 20nn : 20nn-1 

Current service cost 

Interest cost _ 
Expected return on plan assets 

Net actuarial losses recognised in year 

Past service cost 
Losses on curtailment 

Total included in staff costs (Note XX} 

The actual return on plan assets was Rexx xxx (20nn-] — Rexx xxx). 

_ Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet: 

At beginning of year 

Exchange differences 
Total expense as above 
Contributions paid 
At end of year
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AC 116 
AC 116° 
AC 116 

The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes were: 

wey XX 

Discount rate . 
Expected return on plan assets 
Future salary increases 

- Future pension increases 

Post employment medical benefits 

7.0% 
8.5% 
5.0%. 

| 3.0% 

6.8% 
- 83% 

| 4.5% 
25% 

The HEI operates a number of post-employment medical benefit schemes. The method of accounting and 

In addition to the assumptions used for pension schemes, the main actuarial assumption is a long- 
term increase in heaith costs of 12% per year (20nn-] - 8%). 

XX Provisions for liabilities and charges 

Warranty Restructuring 

At 31 December 20nn-1 

Exchange differences 
Additional provisions 
Unused amounts reversed 

Charged to income statement. 
Utilised during year 
At 31 December 20nn 

9 Finance income 

10 

ji 

Income from investments 
Interest received — call accounts 

Non-recurrent income 
Proceeds of sale of Laboratory and computer equipment, fumiture and 
vehicles previously expensed , 

Staff costs 
Academic professional 
Other personnel 
Pension costs 
Other post-retirement costs 

An alternative format of Staff Costs presentation follows: 

Staff costs ‘ Academic 
Professional 

Wages and salaries 

Termination benefits / 

Pension costs - defined benefit plans (Note XX) 

Other post retirement benefits (Note XX) 

Average weekly number of persons employed by the HE! during the year: 

Full time 

Part time 

_ the frequency of valuations are similar to those used for the defined benefit pension schemes. 

Other Total 

20nn 20nn-1 

85 537 83 676 

12 446 

85 549 84 122 

20nn 20nn-1 

7700 - 

20nn 20nn-1 

335 293 323239 . 

117 095 87 603 

37568 32099 
_ 4194 2.978 . 

494150 445919 - 

Other Totals 

20nn 20nn-1
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12. Other operating expenses 

_ The following items have been charged in arriving at operating profit: 20nn 20nn-1 

- Supplies and services , ea 228550 . . 376 347 

Cost of services outsourced est 16 717 15 338 

Fixed property cost — rental a . 37 568 32 099 

Maintenance of PPE (incl. “additional depreciation”) oe 15 267 - 9248 

° 32.792 30 087 Bursaries 

Se 330 894 463 119 

13 Financecosts = 20nn 20nn-1 

AC 112 Net foreign exchange transaction gains/(losses) 

~ Interest expense 
" Long-term borrowings 

- bank borrowings 2 / 15493 | 11 4910 

- finance leases . a . oo, . : 21 

15 493 11511 

- AC 133 XX Financial instruments 

d Objectives and significant terms and conditions 

In order to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in currency exchange rates and interest rates, the 

- HEI makes use of the following derivative financial instruments: 7 : : 

- Interest rate swaps 

_ The HEI has entered into interest rate swap contracts that entitle it to receive interest at. ‘floating rates on 

- notional principal amounts and oblige it to pay interest at fixed rates on the same amounts. The interest 

rate swaps allow the HEI to raise long term borrowings at. ‘floating rates and swap them into fixed rates 

that are lower than those available if it borrowed at fixed rates directly. Under the interest rate swaps, 

_ the HEI agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (mainly quarterly), the difference 

between fixed rate and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional 

principal amounts. At 31 December 20nn the fixed interest rates vary from 6.9% to.7.4% (20un-1 6.7% to 

_ 7.2%) and the floating rates are linked to the repo rate. 

The remaining terms and notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 

31 December were: 

‘ 
20nn  20nn-1 

Less than one year 
One to five years 
Five to ten years 

'- Forward foreign exchange contracts 

Forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into to manage exposure to fluctuations in foreign 

currency exchange rates on specific transactions. In general the HEI's policy is.to enter into forward 

foreign exchange contracts for up to 75% of net foreign currency receipts anticipated in each month over 

the following two years. Se . 

At 31 December 20nn and 20nn-1 the settlement dates: on open forward contracts ranged between 

3 months and 1 year. The local currency amounts to be received and contractual exchange rates of the 

HEI's outstanding contracts were: SO se oO 

7 me 20nn -20nn-1 

Deutschmarks [at rates averaging 1 R= DM 2.835 

(20nn-1 -, 1 R= DM 2.795)] 
US dollars [at rates averaging I R= USD 1.635 (nn-1 - 1 R= USD 1.614)] 

The net unrecognised gains at 31 December 20nn'on open contracts which hedge anticipated future foreign currency 

sales amounted to R12 (20nn-1, - R3). These gains will be recognised in the income statement when these open 

contracts mature at various dates between 6 months to 1 year from the balance sheet date.
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Net fair values. 

The net fair values of the HEI's derivative Jinancial instruments at the balance sheet date were: 

: . 20nn 20nn-1 
Favourable interest rate swap contracts ; . 
Favourable forward foreign exchange contracts 

Unfavourable interést rate’ swap contracts 
Unfavourable forward foreign exchange contracts 

The fair values of interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts have been calculated 
(using rates quoted by the HEI's bankers) to terminate the contracts at the balance sheet date. 

ii) Credit risk 

The HEI has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Derivative instruments are entered into, and 
cash is placed with substantial financial institutions. The credit exposures of derivatives are represented 
by the net fair values of the contracts, as disclosed above. 

iti) Fair values 

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their fair 
value: cash, investments, trade receivables and payables, other receivables and payables, finance lease 
receivables and obligations, short term borrowings and floating rate long-term borrowings. Information 
on the fair values of borrowings, interest rate ‘swaps and Joreign currency forward exchange contracts is 
included in Note 10 and in Section (i) of this note. 

Changes in Funds 

' The changes in funds statement contains direct subtractions from individual funds that are not reflected in 
the income statement or are apparent elsewhere in the Annual Financial Statements: 

Transfers — debit R 74.590 

This relates to the release of funds to the University of X in respect of its share of funds received from a 
‘ donor for a research project to be undertaken jointly by the two institutions. 

15 The following disclosures relate to compensation paid to Executive staff. Remuneration is based on the 
cost of employment to the institution comprising flexible remuneration packages. 

_ Annualised gross remuneration 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

Format of disclosure 

NAME , OFFICE HELD AGGREGATE 

AMOUNT R,000s 
AA Principal . : ; 1 265 
AB Vice-Principal 23 884 
AC Deputy Principal Research 721 
AD Executive Director — Finance 720 
AE Deputy Principal Academic 658 
AF ~ Deputy Principal Personnel 658 
AG Registrar 542 
AH Deputy Principal Student affairs - $37 
Al Executive Dean - Business School 488 
AJ Executive Dean - Health Sciences 480 
AR Executive Dean —Science . — St 478 
AL Executive Dean - Engineering & Built 

, Environment 478 - 
AM Executive Dean — Commerce and Business 

Studies 475 
AN Executive Dean —Humanities oe 475   
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Exceptional payment amounts — each exceeding in annual ageregate R249999 

Format of disclosure 

NAME TO WHOM PAID AMOUNT 

oe R's... 

Commutation of AN Executive — Dean Humanities. - 277 500 

leave 

Ditto AM _ | Exec, Dean — Commerce 276 650 

Pension top-up BZ _ Retired Dean Humanities ~~ 285 000 

Payments for attendance at meetings of the Council and its Committees 

Format of disclosure 

NUMBER ATTENDANCE AT _ REIMBURSEMENT OF 

TO WHOM PAID MEETINGS EXPENSES 
MEMBERS AGGREGATE AGGREGATE 

AMOUNT PAID — R’000s | AMOUNT PAID — R’000s 

Chair of Council 15 7 

Chairs of committees 30 9 

Members of Council 28 85 27 

Members of 20 36 18 

committees 

16 Contingencies 

_ Contingent liabilities 

Bank and similar guarantees — ; oe . 

17 

At 31 December 20nn the HEI had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and other 

matters arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities 

will arise. In the ordinary course of business the HEI has given guarantees amounting to R18,624 (20nn-1 

- R19,629) to third parties in respect of housing loans supplied to employees. 

Commitments ' 

Capital commitments 

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial statements 

is the following: _ . 

20nn 20nn-1 

4,141 4,053 : ; Property, plant and equipment 

It is expected that these expenditures will be funded from existing financial resources. 

XX Operating lease commitments 

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

20nn , 20nn-1 

Not later than 1 year 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 

Later than 5 years
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AC 118 18 Cash generated from operations 

Reconciliation of profit before tax and extraordinary items to cash generated from operations: 

. 20nn 20nn-1 

Surplus 8 126 47717 

Adjustments for: - . 
Depreciation (Note 1) : , 57725 31 231 
Additional depreciation (Impairment resulting from deferred maintenance) (Note 1) . 10000 1000 
Net amount capitalised to (expended from) reserves 25 964 (52 231) 
Finance income (85 549) (84 122) 
Finance costs . 15 493 11511 
Changes in working capital: . 

-receivables and prepayments . (39 607) 10 066 
-inventories ; (1 069) 1 778. 
-trade and other payables / _. 30848 2271 

Cash retained/(utilised by) operations 2193): (10.779) 

AC 126 19 Related party transactions — 

During the year there were transactions with entities controlled by members of Council and with joint 
ventures in which the University was a party. All these transactions were conducted at “arms length” and 
comprised purchases of goods and services totalling R326 848 and sales of goods and services totalling 
R179 286. 

AC 107 20 Post balance sheet event 

In March 20nn the HEI reached an agreement with the College of Nursing to merge at the earliest 
practicable date. The College of Nursing has total income of some R11 million, 1 600 full-time and 1 900 
part time students and nearly 300 staff. The College trains nurses for the whole of Goliath Regional 
Health Authority and some nurses for a number of adjoining Health Authorities, 

AC 136° 21 Post employment benefit plans 

A number of pension/retirement schemes exist covering permanent and part-time employees. These are 
all established in terms of existing legislation and are all defined contribution schemes. Actuarial 
valuations are performed every three years and all funds are fully funded based on most recent valuations. 
The assets of each find are held separately under the control of the duly appointed trustees of the funds. 
The cost charged to income represents contributions payable by the employer at rates specified in the 
rules of each fund.



STAATSKOERANT, 29. AUGUSTUS 2003 No. 25407 65 

CHAPTER 6 

SUPPLEMENTARY AUDITED FINANCIAL DATA AND “PERFORMANCE/STATUS” 

6.1 

6.2 

INDICATORS TO BE SUBMITTED IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT ON 
COMPUTER DISKS 

Excel spreadsheets that must be completed and certified by an institution’s auditors 

for submission to the Department of Education at the same time as the audited 

financial statements. oe 7 

A printed copy of the spreadsheets, initialled by the auditors, must accompany the 

audit report. 

Example of independent auditor’s report on data submitted 

To the (name of institution) on factual findings. 

Scope | | 

We performed the procedures agreed with you as described below with respect to the schedules 

_ on computer disk and set forth in the accompanying schedules - “Supplementary financial data 

and performance/status indicators from Universities and Technikons” in respect of the year ended 

dd/mm/yyyy, which we have initialled for identification purposes. Our engagement was ~ 

- undertaken in accordance with the statements of South African Auditing Standards applicable to 

agreed-upon procedures agreements. The responsibility for determining the adequacy or 

otherwise of the procedures agreed:to be performed is that of the Council. Our procedures were 

performed solely to assist you in evaluating the accuracy of the above mentioned schedules and 

are summarised as follows; . oo 

e We performed such checks as to satisfy ourselves that the calculations are 

mathematically correct : 

¢ The information used in the calculations and included on the schedule of “financial 

data” agree to the financial records of the HEL 

Because the above procedures do not constitute either an audit or a review made in accordance 

with statements of South African Auditing Standards, we do not express any assurance on the 

Schedule “Performance/status indicators from Universities and Technikons” for the year ended 

dd/mm/yyyy. 

No audit procedures have been performed by us on the projected figures for yyy and yyyy 

according to the attached schedules and thus we express no opinion thereon. 

Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an audit or review of the financial — 

data included in accordance with the Statements of South African Auditing Standards, other 

matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

Our report is solely for the purpose set out in the first paragraph of this report and for your 

information and is not to be used for any other purpose, nor to be distributed to any other parties. 

This report relates only to the items specified above and does not extend to any financial. 

statements of the HEI taken as a whole. “ 

XYZ & Co., Public Accountants and Auditors 

Date 

Address - 

The content of the Excel spreadsheets follows: -



CHAPTER 6.1 
FINANCIAL DATA RETURNS FROM TECHNIKONS AND UNIVERSITIES 
NB: ALL AMOUNTS TO BE ENTERED IN R'00O 
(DATA EXTRACTED FROM FINAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELEVANT BUDGETS) 

HEMIS INSTIT. CODE-> 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

[NAME OF INSTITUTION] 999 
INCOME STATEMENT , TOTALS 

ACTUAL |FINAL BUDGET |<. PROJECTIONS—-—> 
20nn 20nn 20nn+1 20nn+2 

INCOME 

EDUCATION AND GENERAL - council controlled 

RECURRENT , 738748 714734 793750 834571 State Appropriations - General Purposes 343127 347316 375770 406821) - Fees - Formal Tuition and Related 178969 189502 219628 228648 Fees - Other incl. Short informal courses : 
Contract Income - Research 78927 82146 98637 87352] : Other 786 . 3697 Sales - Goods and Services 27098 28500 30275 34816 Private Gifts and Grants - General Purposes 41131 2170 2170 2712 Investment Income - Interest, Dividends ete. - General Purposes 68710 65100 67270 70525 

Other ‘ 

NON-RECURRENT 16031 3200 1200 1000 Disposal of expensed equipment 7700 3200 1200 1000 Other Profit on sale of investments 8331 . 
TOTAL INCOME EDUC. AND GEN. - Council controlled 754779 717934} 794950 835571 
EDUCATION AND GENERAL - specifically funded 

_ State Appropriations - Special Purposes 23502 20600 22785 24955 Contract Income - Research 234766 184019 288708 329438 
Other 3116 4890 5684 5600 Sales - Goods and Services 10010 11756 12784 15396 

Private Gifts and Grants - Specified Purposes 115670 72657 77035 80290 
Investment Income - Interest, Dividends etc. - Specified Purposes 16839 14286 20582 18674 

Other , Q 
Net Transfers - Funds not expended()/ Expen. Funded from prior year income(+) -101192 
TOTAL INCOME EDUC. AND GEN. - Specified Purposes 302711 308208 427578 474353 TOTAL INCOME EDUCATION AND GENERAL 1057490 1026142 1222528 1309924 
STUDENT AND STAFF ACCOMMODATION 

State Appropriations specified purposes : ‘ 
Fees - Accommodation 25994 29457 30922 33093 
Sales - Goods and Services , 
Private Gifts and Grants - Specified Purposes 

Investment Income - Interest, Dividends etc. - Specified Purposes 

Other 

TOTAL INCOME STUDENT AND STAFF ACCOMMODATION 25994 29457 30922 33093 
TOTAL INCOME - EDUC. AND GEN; SPECIFIED PURPOSES: ACCOMM. 1083484 1055599 1253450 1343017 
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EXPENDITURES 

‘EDUCATION AND GENERAL - couneil.controlled 
  

  
  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

Per | Cost of employment inc. all benefits and taxes, 372572 364224}: 491722 530891 
Academic 215415 221648 288142 316429 

Other 157157 142576 203580] 214462 

Other operating expenditures {incl. depreciation and other provisions) 365965 264743 301909 308506 

Recurrent 347984 243079 282974 292486 

Depreciation Provision incl. Additional 52500 62750 73000 85000 

Employment/Post Employment benefit/obligation Provision (i incl. Accum. leave} 0 0 0 ol 

Finance costs 15493 14768 13275 14698 

Other . 279991 165561 196699 192788 

Non-recurrent including extraordinary items and additional depreciati 17981 21664 18935 16020 

Hospitals : 0 0 0 oO 

Personnel Compensation 

Other Current Operating Costs 

Capital Expenditure Expensed 

independent Operations (HEMIS definition) 0 0 Ol | 0 

Personnel Compensation , 

Other Current Operating Costs 

"Capital Expenditure Expensed 
TOTAL Expenditure Education and General {as per Income Statement) 738537 628967 793631 8393971 

SPECIFICALLY FUNDED ACTIVITIES ue ° 

Personnel compensation inc. all benefits - Academic staff 104861 85400 121900 148650 

Personnet compensation inc. all benefits - Other staff 8875 , . oO 

Depreciation incl. Additional 0 , : 

Recurrent operating costs 31359 8330 8897 9657 

Finance costs , : 
Other 

Non recurrent expenditure expensed 154115 178861 272479 293428) 
TOTAL Expenditure Specifically Funded Activities (as per Inc. Statement) 299210 272591 403276 451735} — 

TOTAL Expenditure E & G and Spec. Funded (as per Inc. Statement) 1037747 901558 1196907: 1291132 

STUDENT & STAFF ACCOMMODATION Oo 

Personnel Compensation 7842 5209 5751 _ 6836)" 
Depreciation incl. Additional 7225 

Recurrent Operating Costs 19544 24293 26040 ' 27233) ° 
Finance costs . 

Other 

Non recurrent expenditure expensed incl. Additional Depreciation 3000 
TOTAL Expenditure StudentiStaff Accommodation (as per Inc. Statemet} 37611 29502] - 31791] - 34069 

TOTAL Expenditure all activities (as per Income Statement) 1075358 931060 1228698 1325201 

SURPLUS/DEFICIT ALL. ACTIVITIES { as per Income Statement) 8126 124539 24752) 17817 

OTHER FINANGIAL INFORMATION _ 

Per Costs - Recurrent (Cost to Employer} 494150 364224] 491722 530891). 

" Academic staff (Permanent) 206055 216180 245210 264740 

Academic staff (Fixed-term). - 114221 . 
Library Professional staff 8614 9233 9982 10742 

Library. Other staff 6247 7595 8355 $005 
Information Technology and Computer support staff 10838 12033 13020 14105; 

Other personnel (Full-time, Part-time) 148174 119183 215155 232299 
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Q Q 0 0 Retrenchment costs/Accum.leave/Post-retirement Benefits 0 0 0 0 Accumulated leave/Post-retirement Benefits [Prior years] 0 0 o 0 Outsourced contract costs for: 15403 15378 16709 17252 ‘Security 
0 445 543 651 Cleaning 2999 2170 2485 2604 Grounds and gardens | 2326 2687 3038 3147 - Catering . 

Information Technology and computer services : 
_ Maintenance 10078 10076 10633 10850 Other . 

: 
Aggregate Other Expenditure ~ . . 

._ Recurrent . 390709 387746 478321 500398 ‘Bursaries 
32792 34531 41122 4485 Depreciation including Additional 59725 62750 73000 85000 Post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 Finance costs 15493 14768 13275 14698 _ _Other 282699] . 275697 350924 396215 Non-Recurrent . 175096 

Additional Depreciation 8000 
Capital items expensed 12881 

Other : 154115 : 
Bursaries and Scholarships (institution funded) 32792 34531 41122 44485 First Qualification : 22545 26923 32659 35805 Higher Qualification 10247 7608 8463 8680} Student debt - Fees, Loans and Other 38154 36526 38795 40482 Student debt written off and/or adjustment to amount provided 7300 6510 6510] . 6510 Amount of provision for irrecoverable student debt _ 21500 
Bursaries and Scholarships (NSFAS and Other outside funded) 
Students - First Qualification 39549 32876 34937 36890 _ Students - Higher Qualification 10247 9765 10416 10850 Students Total 49796 42641 45353 47740 Staff Academic professional 3417 3689 3906 - 4123 Staff Other ‘ - 6998 7161 7595 7921 Staff Indebtedness - loans and other 14949 : 
Student and Staff Accommodation , 
Total loan indebtedness outstanding. 12528 
Total student housing operating cost per FTE student housed 3391 
LOANS GRANTED inc. NSFAS . 

Students - First qualification 16698 
" Higher quatification 1855 

Students - Total. 18553 
Staff - Academic Professional / 3740 

8724 

  r 

  Personnel Costs - Non-Recurrent (Cost to Employer} 
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Capital Expenditure - Land and Buildings 24975 

  

  

  

  

    
  

          
  

  
  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Capital Expenditure - Non-Current Investments 315701 

Capital Expenditure Capitalised - Other 
59546 

Proceeds disposal - Non-current assets - Land and Buildings 159 

Pp ds disposal - Non tf ti 323002 

Proceeds disposal - Non-current assets - - Other 
3711 

Increase/Decrease(-) in Borrowings - Non-current (Year end balance) 6208 

{0 (-) in Borrowings - Current - (Year end bal ) 0 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CASH FLOW) - YEAR-END BALANCE 55793 69716 53892 58720 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CASH FLOW) - YEAR-BEGINNING BALANCE 33202 

GASH -AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CASH FLOW) - CHANGE 22591 

BALANCE SHEET - FOR REPORTING YEAR ONLY 

ASSETS 
1312291 

Non-current - PPE 
279571 

Intangible property 
oF 

Investments - Marketable securities 
784810 

Deposits with Public Investment Commissioners 0 

Other 
0 

Receivables 
12528 

1076909 

Current - inventories 
6393 

Receivabies 
173196 

Investments - Marketable securities 
0 

Deposits with Public Investment Commissioners 0 

Other 
8 

Cash and cash equivalents 55793 

235382 

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 
4312294 

FUNDS 
4071760 

Invested in and/or held for PPE 194761 

Funds for investment in PPE 
0 

Restricted use funds reserves - Residences 4257 

» Student Loan Funds 12528 

- Endowment and Trust Funds 133644 

- Education and general 323774 

Unrestricted use income - Endowment and Trust Funds - Education and general 231960 

- Reserves : 170836 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
88174 

Non-current - Borrowings - (net state subsidised) 88174 

Borrowings - (state subsidised) 
0 

Employment benefit obligations a] 

Post employment benefits/obligations 
0 

Other ‘ G 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
152357 

Current - Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 149836 

Provision for employment/post-employment benefits/obligations 0 

Deposits held 
1867 

Current portion of borrowings - General 654 

: State subsidised 0 

Other 
0 

Aggregate Depreciation Provisions 356721 

Market value of non-current investments Year n 784810 

Market value of non-current investments Year n-4 789719 

Off balance sheet liabilities 
0 -     
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  Income (unrestricted){(Income (unrestricted) + income (specific activities) 

CHAPTER 6.2 
/ PERFORMANCE/STATUS INDICATORS FROM TECHNIKONS AND UNIVERSITIES [NAME OF INSTITUTION] HEMIS INSTIT. CODE—> 999 

, 
Expressed 

as % FUNDS 
100,00% PPE Fund/Total Funds 
18.17% PPE Funds for investment/Total Funds 
0.00% Restricted & Administered Funds (Residences)/Total Funds 0.40% Restricted & Administered Funds (Student loans)/Total Funds 1.17% Restricted & Administered Funds (Endowment and Trusts)/Total Funds 12.47% Restricted & Administered Funds (Other)/Total Funds 

30.21% Unrestricted + Council Designated (Endowment and Trusts)/Total Funds 21.64% Unrestricted + Council Designated Funds ( General)/Total Funds 15.94% Capitalisation level (computed according to the formula) -111923059 LIABILITIES 
Total Liabilities/(Total Funds + Total Liabilities) 

18.33% Current Liabilities/Total Liabilities 
63.34% ASSETS 
100.00% PPE(carrying value)/Total Assets(carrying value) 21.30% Non-current investments (carrying value)/Total Assets (carrying value) 59.80% Non-current Investments (market value)/Non-current Investments (carrying value) 100.00% Non-current receivables/Total Assets (carrying value) 
0.95% 

Current Assets (carrying value)/Total Assets (carrying value) 17.94% LIQUIDITY (based on carrying values unless otherwise stated) Ratios or Current Assets/Current Liabilities 
1.5449 Cash retained/utilised(-)/Gash Balance (beginning of year) [Cash Flow Statement] 68.04% (Current Assets - Inventories)/Current Liabilities : 1,5030 (Current Assets - inventories - Current Liabilities)/Monthly Payroll *--------.-------.-—- ——> #DIV/O! 

Provision for irrecoverable student debt/Total student debt outstanding 56.35% Student Fee debt (year n)/all student fees Cd) > 
Student Fee debt (year n-1)/all student fees (year n-1) Peete nee ten a> 
Student Fee debt (year n-(>1))/all student fees (year n-(>1)) *--~~----—-—-- n-ne > 
INVESTMENTS (Quoted) , 
(Market value(year n) )-(market value(year n-1) 

-4909 
_ (Market value(year n)-(market value(year n-1))(Market value (year n-1) -0.62% 
income (dividends+interest)/ Average Annual Market value (computed quarterly) *-----> , INVESTMENTS (UNQUOTED) 
‘Estimated realisable value/Cost * 

Total Income/Estimated realisable value * : on 
- “NOTE: Calculations computed automatically except those marked '’------> 

_ EDUCATION AND GENERAL 
INCOME (UNRESTRICTED - COUNCIL CONTROLLED) 100.00% 
State appropriations total/Total column income - 

45.46% Fee income/Total column income J 23.71% Contract income/ Total column income 10.56% Sales of goods and services/Total column income 3.59% 
Total gifts and grants/Total column income 

5.45% Investment income/Total column income 
9.10% Other recurrent income/Total column income 0.00% 

Non-recurrent - Proceeds of or Profit on sale of assets/Total column income 1.02% ‘Non-recurrent - Other/Total column income 1.10% Surplus (+)/Deficit(-)/Total column income . 2.15% INCOME (SPECIFICALLY FUNDED ACTIVITIES) 100.00% State appropriations and grants/Total column income 7.76% 
Total gifts and grants/Total column Income 

38.21% "Contract income/ Total column income 78.58% Sales of goods and services/Total column income 3.31% " Investment income/Tota! column income 
5.56% Other income/Total column income 
0.00% Net Transfers/Total column income 

-33.43% 
Surplus (+)/Deficit(-)/Totat column income. 

1.16% 

71.37%      
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INCOME (STUDENT/STAFF ACCOM MODATION) ~100.00% 

*. State appropriations and grants/Total column income. : : “9.00% 

Fee income/Totat column income -100.00% 

Total sales goods and services/Total column income -0.00% 

” Total gifts and grants/Total column Income 0.00% 

Investment income/Total column income "0.00% 

~ Other income/Total column income 0.00% 

Surplus (+)/Deficit(-)/Total column income -44.69% 

EXPENDITURE (EDUCATION AND GENERAL) 97.85% 

Personnel cost /Total column income - 49.36% 

Academic Personnel/Tota! column income 28.54% 

Other Personnel cost /Total Column income 20.82% 

Personnel cost /(Total subsidy + tuition fees) -. 71.36% 

Current operating costs [exc. depreciation. and capex.}/Total column income 32.75% 

Bursaries/otal column income | 4.34% 

Depreciation/tota! column income - 6.96% 

Post-employment benefits/obligations/Total column income 0.00% 

. Finance costs/Total column income 2.05% 

Non-recurrent expenditure {inc. additional deprec.)/Total column income 2.38% 

Hospitals expenditure/Total column income * 0.00% 

Independent Operations expenditure/Totat column income 0.00% 

Total expenditure/Total Weighted FTE students enrolled *--— #DIV/0! 

-#DIV/O! 

Academic staff personnel cost/Total Weighted FTE students enrolled *-—---------~ > #DIV/01 

% Academic staff per FTE/Total cost per FTE : #DIV/0! 

EXPENDITURE (SPECIFICALLY FUNDED ACTIVITIES) 98.84% 

Personnel cost /Total column income 37.57% 

Current operating costs[exc.additional deprec.& capex.]/Total column income / 10.36% 

Finance costs/Total column income, 7! 0.00% 

Other expenditure/Total column income 0.00% 

(Capital expenditure + Additional Depreciation)/Total column income 50.91% 

- Bursaries (outside funded)fif ascertainable] (Amount in R'000s)*------------—-----—-—-~ > . 0 

EXPENDITURE (STUDENT/STAFF ACCOMMODATION) 116.90% 

Personne! cost /Tota! column income 30.17% 

Current operating costs[exe. additional deprec. and capex.}/Total column income "75.19% 

Finance costs/Total column income 0.00% 

Other expenditure/Total colurnn income ~ 0.00% 

(Capital expenditure + Additional Depreciationy/T otal column income 11.54% 

Surplus{Total)Total Income 0.75% 

_ OTHER FINANCIAL DATA . 

Personne! Costs - Recurrent 45.95% 

Academic staff (Permanent)/Total (all columns) Expenditure 19.16% 

__ Agademic staff (Fixed-term)/Total (all columns) Expenditure - * 10.62% 

” Library Professional staff/Totat (ati columns) Expenditure 0.80% 

Library Other staff/Total (all columns) Expenditure "0.58% 

Information Technology and Computer support stafi/Total (all columns) Expenditure 1.01% 

Other personne! (Full-time, Part-time)/Total (all columns) Expenditure 13.78% 

Personnel Costs - Non Recurrent 0.00% 

Retrenchment costs/Total (all columns) Expenditure 0.00% 

Accum. Leave/Post-retirement Benefits [Prior years}/T ‘otal (all columns) Expenditure 0.00% 

Outsourced contract costs for: 1.48% 

Security/Total (all columns) Expenditure 0.00% 

Cleaning/Totat (all columns) Expenditure 
0.28% 

Grounds and gardens/Total(all columns) Expenditure 0.22% 

Catering/Total (all columns) Expenditure * 0.00% 

Information Technology and computer services/Total (all columns) Expenditure ‘0.00% 

_ Maintenance/Total {all columns) Expenditure 0.94% 

Other/Total (all colurnns) Expenditure 
0.00% 

Bursaries and Scholarships (institution funded} 3.05% 

First Qualification/Total (all columns) Expenditure 2.10% 

Higher Qualification/Total {all columns)Expenditure 0.95% 

First Qualification/Total student fee income - 12.60% 

Higher Qualification/Total student fee Income 5.73% 

Student debt written off and/or provided as irrecoverable 

(Written-off + Change in Provision for Irrecoverable)/Total {alt columns) Expenditure 0.68% 

Other operating expenditures (incl. depreciation and other provisions) 48.89% 

Recurrent (excluding Outsourced, Bursaries and Debt write offs) 

Other Operating Costs/Total (all columns) Expenditure 25.61% 

Depreciation Provision/Total (ail columns) Expenditure 5.55% 

Post Employment Benefits Provision/Total (all columns) Expenditure 0.00% 

Finance costs 1.44% 

Non-recurrent 

Non-recurrent/ Total (al! columns) Expenditure 16.28% 

Aggregate Expenditure/Total_ Income 99.25%   
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  Net Capital expenditure/(PPE+Non-current invest ) . 6.89%   
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Expenditure by activity as a %of Grand Total : 
Instruction, Research Community Services 

: 59.96% Personnel 
. 35.69% Goods and services ’ . . 24.27% Cost of outsourced services : 0.00% Fixed property costs including rentals 

0.00% Equipment costs including depreciation, maintenance and CAPEX expensed : 0.00% Cost of goods acquired for re-sale 
0.00% Student services 
7.59% Personnel 
1.78% 

Supplies and Services . . 1.10% Cost of outsourced services , : 0.00% Fixed property costs including rentals 
0.05% 

Equipment costs including depreciation, maintenance and CAPEX expensed . 0.12% Bursaries 
: 4.53% Cost of goods acquired for re-sale 

0.00% Institutional support | : / : 22.83% Personne! ; 10.29% 
Supplies and Services 

9.54% Cost of outsourced services 
0.00% Fixed property costs including rentals . 1.96% Equipment costs including depreciation, maintenance and CAPEX expensed 1.04% 

Other 
: 0.00% Operation and maintenance of real estate and plant , 9.62% 

Personnel 
1.72% 

Supplies and Services . 1.23% 
Cost of outsourced services 

2.13% 
Fixed property costs including rentals 2.71% 
Equipment costs including depreciation, maintenance and CAPEX expensed 1.83% 

Other 
0.00% 

Other 
0.00% 

Personnel. 
0.00% 

Supplies and Services . : - 0.00% 
Cost of outsourced services . 0.00% 
Fixed property costs including rentals : 0.00% 

. Equipment costs including depreciation, maintenance and‘ CAPEX expensed 0.00% 
Bursaries 

0.00% 
Cost of goods acquired for re-sale ; 0.00% 

: 100.00% 
  LOANS GRANTED Inc NSFAS 

Institution   

  

   Total/Total student fee ICOM © annem annem nnn anne >- 
_ Staff - Academic Professional/Academic profession total personnel cost *-.—--——- > 

Other/Other staff total personnel cost *-----—-—~-----—----eoeeneeeee nee —nec oe > 
-_NSFAS 

Students - First qualification/Total student fee income *-———-——e-ver-nenceecneen ne > 
Higher qualification/Total student fee income —<—<$_—$_> 

Total/Total student fee income*————___________, ? 

Y
N
 
V
N
 

yl
, 

  

  

y
y
 

  

Other 

Students - First qualification/Total student fee income *-—---=--------—ee--nnnennnee ——-> ? 
Higher qualification/Total student fee income *@—-——~-----—---——---e- ane > 

. Total/Total student fee Income*——__________, 
Bursaries and Scholarships (NSFAS & Other outside funded) 
Students - First Qualification/total student fee income “eave secvneaneenenneaenee__- -> 
Students - Higher Qualification/Total student fee income *—---ve-c-neeede-eeeo----- > 

Total/Total student fee income*————_________ 

Staff Academic professional/Total student fee income *--------e--e----vee-a-aeneneene ee > 
Staff Other/total student fee income *. 

  

v
o
 

  

  

  

v
i
n
 
v
v
 

  

  

  Staff Compensation by category*———_________ In R'000s 
(Total compensation, incl. All benefits)/FTE staff numbers for tespective category) 
Categories: 

Academic professional 

- Executive Admin., Management, Professional 

Specialist support 

Technical support 

Non-professional administrative 

Service 

Other 

  

V
V
 
V
V
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PROJECTIONS - RATES OF CHANGE “Expressed 

as % 

Education and General 
Income , 
State appropriations ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 9.51% 

((n+2)-(n+1))(n+1) 8.26% 
Fee Income ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 22.72% 

((n+2)-(n+1))(n+1) 4.11% 
Other income ((n+1)-(n))/{n) 10.74% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) -1.58% 

Expenditure 

Personnel cost ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 31.98% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 7.97% 

Outsourced costs ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 8.48% 

, ((n+2)-(n+1))n+1) 3.25% 

Other costs ((n+1)-(n))/(n) -18.64% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) -2.96% 

Specified activities 
Income 

State appropriations ((n+1)-(n))/(n) -3.05% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 9.52% 

Other income ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 5.68% 

((n+2)-(n+1)){n+1) 0.28% 

Expenditure 

Personnel cost ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 16.25% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 21.94% 

Other costs ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 50.31% 

. ((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 7.72% 

Studentistaff accommodation 

Income 

State appropriations ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 0.00% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 0.00% | . 

Fee Income ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 18.96% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 7.02% 

Other income ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 0.00% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 0.00% 

Expenditure 
Personnel cost ((n+1)-(n))/(n) -26.67% 

((n+2)-(n+1))(n+1) 31.23% 

Outsourced costs ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 0.00% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) ‘0.00% 

Other costs ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 33.24% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n*1) 4.58% 

Additional financial data 

Academic Professional staff cost ((n+1)-(n))/(n) -23.44% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 7.96% 

Other staff cost ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 41.78% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 7.97% 

Bursaries and scholarships - institution funded ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 25.40% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 7.68% 

Bursaries and scholarships - outside funded ((n+1)-(n))/(n) #DIV/0! 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) #DIV/O! 

Student debt written off ((n+1)-(n))/(n) -10.82% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 0.00% 

Aggregate student debt (Current & loans) ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 1.68% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 4.35% 

Cash and cash equivalents (Cash flow) ((n+1)-(n))/(n) 3.41% 

((n+2)-(n+1))/(n+1) 8.96% 
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA FROM TECHNIKONS AND UNIVERSITIES 
[NAME OF INSTITUTION] HEMIS INSTIT. CODE~> g99 

EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITY CATEGORY (EDUCATION AND GENERAL) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20nn R'000s 

ACTIVITIES PERSONNEL SUPPLIES COST OF FIXED EQUIPMENT COST COST AND. SERVICES PROPERTIES COSTS INCL, OF ITEMS SERVICES OUTSOURCED COST INCL. DEPRECIATION | BURSARIES ACQUIRED TOTAL 
RENTAL & CAPEX FOR . 

EXPENSED RE-SALE INSTRUCTION, RESEARCH, COMMUNITY : 
: SERVICE AND RELATED SUPPORT * 258620 175835 

434455 
STUDENT SERVICES 

12929 7961 391 893 32793 54967 
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT * 74570 69139 14173 7584 

165436 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF REAL 

‘ ESTATE AND PLANT 12453 8895 15403 18642 413286 
69679 

HOSPITALS 

0 
INDEPENDENT OPERATIONS 

0 
TOTAL 

358572 261830 15403 34206 21733 32793 724537 
                    

* Support includes managerial, administrative, secretarial and technical activities and professional services 

NON-CURRENT AND CURRENT INVESTMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 20nn 
R'000s 

OF INVESTMENT 

INVESTMENTS 
STATE STOCKS AND BONDS 
STOCK/DEBENTURES IN PUBLIC CORP'S 
MUNICIPAL STOCK 

SHARES 

MONEY MARKET DEPOSITS 
OTHER 

INVESTMENTS 

SHARES 

OTHER - SPECIFY 
OTHER - SPECIFY 

MONEY MARKET DEPOSITS 
OTHER 

CARRYING 

VALUE AT 

START OF 

YEAR 

MARKET 

VALUE AT 

START OF 

YEAR 

3141 

1 

789719 

COST OF 

ADDITIONS 

DURING 

YEAR . 

315701 

DISPOSALS/ 
WRITE-OFFS 
DURING 
YEAR 

-323003 

SURPLUS/ 

DEFICIT 

ON 

DISPOSALS 

INCREASE’ 

DECREASE 

IN MARKET 

VALUE 

CARRYING 

VALUE AT 

END OF 

YEAR 

784810 

MARKETI/EST. 

REALISABLE 

VALUE AT 

YEAR END 

784811 
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NON-CURRENT AND CURRENT BORROWING AT 31 DECEMBER 20nn 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

R'000s 
GUTSTANDING | OUTSTANDING AMOUNT 

TYPE AT START AT END PAYABLE 

OF YEAR OF YEAR _ WITHIN 

ONE YEAR 

STATE LOANS RECEIVED 
PRIVATE LOANS RECEIVED 
BANKING INSTITUTIONS - OVERDRAFT _. . 

BANKING INSTITUTIONS - OTHER (SPECIFY) 72704 74395 326 

PENSION & PROVIDENT FUNDS 11284 12857 328 

INSURERS 1679 1575} . ~ 

OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

OTHER - SPECIFY 

TOTAL 85667 88827 654   
  

Copies of the spreadsheets will be sent annually to all universities and technikons 

prior to the due date for submission of the Annual Reports to enable the insertion 

of the requisite data and the return of the completed spreadsheets with the 

the Annual Report. 

The formats of the spreadsheets and the data included therein have been designed 

to facilitate the interpretation and analysis of the financial condition of all universities 

and technikons and of the sectors as a whole as well as facilitating the maintenance 

of the respective databases with the financial data and the indicators information 

over the years. 
2 

In future years it may prove necessary to amend these formats and data as conditions 

change arid new requirements emerge. Any such future changes will be predicated 

on tHe essential objectives of achieving an understanding of the financial condition of 

the. various institutions as well as the higher education sector as a whole and using 

the information to provide support as considered necessary. 
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CHAPTER 7 

EXPLANATORY COMMENTS ON ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

71 

7.2 

HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS 

Introduction 

To assist users in understanding and using the data contained in the annual financial 
statements required in the Annual Report by the Higher Education Act, the 
following definitions and descriptions of the basic concepts and data elements used 
are provided. 

. Scope . 

. The financial statements of Higher Education Institutions (HEIs) must include as 
“consolidated entities” all entities, whether legal entities or not, and including 
incorporated limited companies, close corporations and trusts, over which the 
institution exercises legal control by way of appointment. of the majority of the 
governing body/trustees or other mearis of control of the activities of such an entity, 

- or by authorising the entity to issue Income Tax certification on its behalf for 

7.3 

7.3.1 

7.3.11 

deduction by the donor of funds donated to it for the benefit of the institution. (See 
“Identifying Control, Joint Control and Significant Influence Relationships” a paper 
by Prof A Watson reproduced i in the Appendix B). B 

Balance Sheet 

’ Funds — available/utilised 

The various sources of funding received or accumulated by the institution over time 
and represented by its net assets at the date of its financial statements comprise its - 
net disclosed financial position. For universities/technikons this comprises a 
variety of different groupings. 

For higher education institutions this component is separated into two major 
categories -AVAILABLE FUNDS (RESTRICTED USE and UNRESTRICTED 
USE) AND UTILISED FUNDS. Within each category there are groupings that 

identify accurately the nature of the items comprising each individual group. (See 
Appendix A) - 

Funds utilised or available only for acquisition of fixed assets: 
PPE (fixed asset) funds 

These comprise the aggregate of expenditure funded separately for fixed properties 
‘ (land, buildings, land improvements other than buildings, e.g. roads), movable 
property (equipment, library collections, museum and art collections, livestock) and 
construction of immovable and movable assets in progress. In addition are 
included, moneys received or appropriated specifically for use to finance new 
constructions or acquisitions of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), servicing of 
debt acquired for the financing of PPE as well as for the renewal or replacement of 
PPE. Any appropriations that are the result of designations made by the Council 

_ and which can be reversed must be included among “unrestricted funds”.
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| 7.3.1.2. Restricted use funds 

7,3.1.2.1 Residences' funds 

Institutional residences are separate funding entities and, primarily because of the 
diversity between institutions of the extent of the use of such facilities, are 

separately identified both in the income statement and the balance sheet. In the 
.. latter any such accumulated fund or funds are grouped as “restricted”. 

7.3.1.2.2 Other funds — restricted use 

These comprise income received by an institution the use of which is legally 

_ beyond the control of its Council. These will be, for example, state appropriations, 

contracts, grants, donations or other income that, in terms of a legal requirement 

must be used only for the specified purposes. In terms of the separate reporting 

structure of the income statement; such donations will be reported accordingly 

under the heading “Specifically funded activities”. The terms of use of such funds 

will normally be in writing and the detailed accounting records of the institution 

should identify each such amount ‘and the extent to which it is unexpended. An 

‘institution in this situation acts as a “trustee” in respect.of such funds. Where the 

use of any such funds will extend over more than one financial period, the inclusion 

of the funds in the income statement in the year of receipt as required by GAAP, 

and the disclosure treatment of the portion of these not expended in that financial 

period and the expenditure of such funds in financial periods subsequent to the one 

in which they were received, is dealt with in section 7.5.1.2. The encumbered 

nature of any unspent amounts of these funds at the date of the financial year-end 

must be indicated in the statement of changes in funds. oS 

In addition, there may -be “Trust/Agency Funds” which are funds held by the 

institution on behalf of other. entities or agencies for ultimate use on purposes 

within the scope of the activities of the institution. 

Within the component of “FUNDS” appearing on the balance sheet a significant 

component of this grouping will normally result from the acquisition of non-current 

assets (PPE), either from income specified for this purpose or from the use of 

money representing the actual use of what had been unrestricted use funds. 

7.3.1.3 Endowment and similar funds — restricted or unrestricted 

These are funds provided by donors or other agencies to be invested appropriately. 

The institution is entitled to use either: (i) the income generated by the assets 

representing the fund, (ii) a portion of the income, reinvesting the balance to 

maintain the “capital value of the fund”, (iii) a combination of both the income 

generated plus a stipulated portion of the capital. 

The utilisation of these funds may. thus be either for general institutional purposes 

or for purposes specified by the donor. The distinction of availability for use 

between the two must. be identified for income statement and balance sheet 

purposes. The Council, as a financial management strategy, may create an 

endowment fund from generally available reserves. In cases where such a fund is 

created from donor funds, with the condition that any income not required for re-
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investment is available for general institutional purposes, or where the fund has 
been created from funds so “designated” by the Council, these funds must be 
treated as unrestricted. 

Endowment funds must be separately identified on the balance sheet or on the 
statement of changes in funds and specified as unrestricted or restricted as the case 
may be. Oo 

Unrestricted use funds — general and designated 

_ These comprise a fund or funds arising from income or surpluses (accumulated 
funds) that are available to the Council in its unfettered and absolute control for 
allocation to resource the activities of the institution. This fund or these funds are 
normally represented by current assets on a balance sheet. Portions of these funds 
may, however, be “designated” by the Council for identified purposes, e.g. 
“replacement of motor vehicles” or “provision of student loans”. Until such time as 

- such designated amounts are used for the identified purpose, they will be disclosed 
but separately identified as part of “unrestricted funds” on the statement of changes 
in funds. Once designated funds are utilised for their created purpose resulting in 

~ items to be expensed, the charge will appear in the income statement and the 
corresponding amount will be transferred from its designated find to the general 
unrestricted fund. If the utilisation results in creation of an asset, e.g. student loans 
granted, the amount so utilised shall be transferred from its designated fund to an 
appropriately named and separately disclosed fund. Where a Council has 
designated funds for specific purposes, e.g. Bursaries and Scholarships, these can 
be separately identified on the “Changes in Funds Statement” as funds within “Sub- 
Total A” (Chapter 5.5). The balance sheet disclosure of “Unrestricted Funds” must, 
however, comply with the examples in Chapter 5.4. 

The accumulated finds comprise the aggregate of the balances on the various funds 
in the accounts of the institution and its proportion of the funds of its consolidated 

~ and equity accounted entities that have no restrictions on use. These include any 

7.3.2 

funds that the management/council may have decided to retain separately for 
designated purposes, such as general contingencies and. other possible future 
liabilities or costs. The amounts of these funds appear on the balance sheet 
appropriately aggregated and identified with unrestricted funds. Included should be 
unspent budget allocations to organisational entities that may be carried forward to 
following financial periods. 

Liabilities 

The various components and disclosure of both non-current and current liabilities 
are comprehensively explained in the extract on the Examples of Notes to the 
Financial Statements (Chapter 5.8 - Notes 7 & 8). A formal opinion from the 
technical division of PWC supports the separation between Current Liabilities and 
Non-Current Liabilities of amounts set aside for employee and post-retirement 
benefits accrued. To the extent that such amounts can realistically be estimated as 
being expended/utilised during the following financial period, these must be 
included as Current Liabilities and the balance, usually the significantly greater 
portion, must then be included as Non-Current Liabilities,



STAATSKOERANT, 29 AUGUSTUS 2003 No. 25407 79 

  

7.3.3... Assets (including, investments s held) 

Assets are separated into “Non- Current” and “Current”. Whenever an enterprise 
supplies goods and services within a clearly identifiable operating cycle, separate 
classifications of current and non-current assets and liabilities on the face of the 
balance sheet provides useful information by distinguishing the assets that are 
continuously circulating as working capital [current assets] from those used in the 
enterprise’s long-term operations. It also identifies assets that are expected to be 
realised within the current operating cycle, and liabilities that are due for settlement’ 
within the same period. An asset should be classified as a current asset when it: _ 
(a) is expected to be realised in, or is held for sale or consumption in, the normal 

course of the enterprise’s operating cycle, or 
(b) is held primarily for trading purposes or for the short term, and expected to be 

realised within twelve months of the balance sheet date,.or 
(c) is cash or a cash equivalent asset that is not restricted in use (AC101). 

7,331 Non-Current Assets 

7.3.3.1.1 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Treatment of acquisition and disposal of PPE and disclosure thereof: 

The accounting entries arising from the acquisition and disposal of fixed assets 

(PPE) must be. in accordance with the balance sheet disclosure of this asset 

category. The binding relationship between the source of funding of this asset 

group and the carrying value of the related assets on the balance sheet must be 

apparent. Therefore, the carrying value of PPE must equal the aggregate of the 

balance of the “Fixed Asset Fund” included in the aggregate funds of an institution, 

the balance of any debt raised to acquire such assets less the aggregate of 

depreciation provided. 

7.3.3.1.2 Funding acquisition/replacement of PPE 

The previous practice of a university or technikon of relying on specific grants from 
the state for funds to replenish its complement of fixed assets is no longer — 

applicable. Institutions must, therefore, through their financial management — 

practices, ensure that funding from its normal operations is available to maintain 

the essential fixed asset base either by accumulation of the required cost or through 

being in a position to service debts raised to finance the acquisition of the required 

fixed assets. 

7.3.3.1.3° Carrying values of PPE 

The acquisition of an individual asset costing in total R5 000 or less need not be 
recorded in an asset register and should normally be expensed in the year of 
acquisition. An individual asset acquired at a total cost exceeding R5 000 must be 

recorded in the asset register and individual assets acquired for a total cost not 

exceeding R15 000 may be expensed in total in the year of acquisition. Any assets | 
not so expensed must be subject to the standard depreciation at the appropriate 

rates.
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. .»;, Expenditure on library collections should be expensed i in the year the expenditure is 
. incurred. Existing amounts carried in PPE for library collections should be written 

_ off over a period not exceeding three years. 

7.3.3.1.4 

7.3.3.1.5 

Depreciation 

The carrying value must take cognisance of the “going concern” nature of the 
operation and thus amounts must be provided to reflect the life cycle and the need 
for replacement of items within a category of PPE. The cost of utilisation of assets 
must be accounted for through the expense item of depreciation. Examples of 
depreciation rates appear in the illustrative notes above and the accepted SARS 
rates per.annum, using the “straight line method”, are:- 

Fixed Property: 
~ Land 0% 
- Buildings 2% 

Motor Vehicles _ 10% - 20% 
Furniture and Equipment 10% - 20% 

. Computer equipment: 
Mainframe and Networks ; 16.67% - 25% 
PCs and Other 20% - 33,3% 

Library Books 100% 

Collections in Museums and Art galleries © 100% 

‘The rates applied in individual cases will depend on circumstances and applied 
professional judgement. The actual rates utilised by an institution must reflect its 
assessment of the amount that best expresses the use made of that asset during the 
financial period. 

Library collections currently in the accounts of i institutions must be written down to 
zero over not ot longer than a three-year period. 

Maintenance 

In addition to normal amounts set aside for depreciation, it is essential for 
institutions to maintain all components of PPE in good useable order. These 
expenditures will include, in addition to those on buildings, such expenditures 
required for all campus infrastructure including roads and landscaping. In those 
circumstances where an institution is unable to maintain its assets in their useable 
condition, with the resultant consequence that the use of such assets is impaired, the 
effect of this must be recorded by means of an “additional depreciation” provision 
created from a charge to income. The amount of such depreciation will have to be 
calculated by reference to individual assets that have been reduced to the levels. of 
impairment that affect the use thereof. 

As the amount so provided reflects an ‘ ‘impairment of the assets” it should be 
deducted with the normal depreciation provisions from the carrying value of the 
assets on the balance sheet. 

The amounts set aside in a particular year for “additional depreciation” will 
normally be disclosed in the income statement as a non-recurrent amount and 
referred to in the Notes to the Accounts. (Chapter 5.8 — Note 1)
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7.4 

7.5 

The aggregate amount expended on maintenance of PPE, including ‘ “additional . 
depreciation”, must be disclosed i in the annual financial statements (Chapter 5.8 - 
Note 12). 

Statement of Changes in Funds 

The balance sheet discloses the aggregates of balances on funds at a respective date. 
Movements within fund. groupings during the financial period resulting from 

' additions, depletions, transfers, etc., must be disclosed in the statement of changes 
in fund balances. 

The separate disclosure of items making up total funds must reflect the legal and/or 
financial management decisions that distinguish the separate nature of those items 
and require them to be disclosed individually. 

This statement comprises the separately identifiable funds groups and the elements . 
of increases or decreases (including any transfers between them) that have taken 

place during the financial period. Details of transfers between funds and in or out of 

funds must, if not clearly indicated in the statement itself or in the income 
statement, be adequately disclosed i in the notes to the financial statements. 

Sub-totals are shown in the statement to provide aggregates that can be related to 

amounts appearing on the balance sheet within the grouping of “Funds”. However, 

there will be circumstances where it will not be practical to denote the characteristic 

of “(i) Restricted; (ii) Unrestricted/Designated” within the column headings to the 

changes in funds statement. Particular funds may comprise composite elements of 

the two, although separately identifiable. In such cases the opening and closing 

balances of each such composite column in the statement must be separated into the 
two. elements to reconcile to the disclosure in the balance sheet where the 
distinction between Unrestricted (including Council designated funds) Funds and 

Restricted Funds is clearly disclosed. 

_ Income Statement 

The presentation of the income statement accords with the three primary groupings 

of income and expenditure of higher education institutions, viz., (i) education and 

general activities funded from unrestricted or Council designated funds that are 
under the control of the institution's Council, (ii) education and general activities 

that are funded for restricted, specifically identified purposes, and (iii) activities 

directly related to providing student and/or staff accommodation. 

It is important that for all items of income and expenditure appearing in the income 
statement the clear distinction between “Recurrent” and “Non-recurrent” be 
rigorously applied. 

The income statement is thus a combination of three separate statements in 

columnar form:
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Education and General 

Unrestricted (Council controlled) 

This grouping comprises the operations that are funded directly from appropriations 
. of revenues that fall under the absolute discretion/control of Council, ¢.g. state 
~, Subsidies for general purposes; tuition and related fee income; sales of goods and 

- services; non-prescriptive donations and grants; income from investments that are 
not held as cover for trust; specific purpose endowments or administered funds; etc. 

Prior to the commencement of a particular financial period, the Council will decide 
how best to apportion the estimated annual income within this grouping in order to 
achieve the institution's strategic objectives. A substantial apportionment of the 
income will be made to the “annual operating budget” to cover operating 
expenditure including amounts to finance capital expenditure items to be expensed 

_ and other non-recurrent items. Other amounts may be apportioned; amongst others, 
to certain “non-operating-budget” expenditures including the financing of major 
capital expenditure projects and decisions made to transfer certain of the income to 
“contingency reserves”. Council may also decide to retain in the “Accumulated 
Funds” amounts not committed for other purposes as a buffer for future 

_ eventualities in addition to any “Contingency” or similar fund. 

7.5.1.2 

The expenditure in the grouping will usually substantially comprise the actual 
amounts of the various line items of the annual “Operating Expenditure Budget”. 
However, there will usually be other budgeted or non-budgeted expenditure items 
including exceptional items of expenditure that did not form part of the institution's 
normal annual operating expenditure budget all of which will have been approved 
by Council. 

Where Council has “designated” amounts of income for certain specified purposes, 
Council retains the option to change its decisions and thus such amounts must 
remain as unrestricted funds subject to comments below. 

Specifically funded activities 

Income received for provider designated specific purposes will arise from contracts, 
grants, donations and income on specifically purposed endowments. In all cases 
any such income should be brought to the income statement in the financial period 
in which the institution becomes entitled to the use of that income which will 
usually be the financial period of receipt. However, even if such income is provided 
for a project or defined activity that will take a number of years to complete, the 
donation/grant must, in compliance with GAAP, be recognised as income in the 
financial year in which it is received. However, in order to achieve ‘fair 

representation’ of the financial activities and condition of the institution, it will be 
necessary to make transfers from and to the income statement to and from the 
respective funds. These transfers will reflect the matching of expenditures on the 
project/defined activity with the income related thereto over the period to its 
completion. These transfers will appear at the bottom of the income statement after 
the ‘surplus/deficit before transfers’ as indicated in the example of the income 

_ Statement in Chapter 5.
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In certain circumstances, it may be preferable, if GAAP: compliance is not: 
- compromised, to disclose such transfers in the income statement immediately 
following the income item to which such funding relates.. An example of such 
income statement disclosure appears as Appendix A. 

: Thus, the funds from donations/grants i in 1 the possession of an institution, the use of 
-. which, under normal conditions, will extend over a number of financial periods, 

must be held; as transferred, in an appropriate fund until the financial period in 
- which these funds are used, at which time the appropriate amount will then be. 
transferred back to the income statement. Until that time the amount will be 
appropriately grouped in one of the funds comprising “Restricted Funds”. 

’ ‘Jn the event of the “Specifically Funded Activities” segment of the income 
--. -gtatement disclosing a surplus, it must be transferred to the relevant restricted fund 

or funds. There are no circumstances in which this segment of the income statement 

may result in a deficit. If the expenditure exceeds the amounts provided, the 
institution will have to fund such a deficit from its “Unrestricted Funds” unless 
there are certain undertakings to cover the deficit from outside sources. i: 

There is a distinction between “contract income” and. “donations/gifts for 
specifically identified purposes”. In the case of an institution being party to a “third 
party contract”, the terms of the contract will usually contain a clause that the 
benefits deriving from the activities undertaken and funded by the third party, will 
accrue to the third party. In the case of “gifts/donations for specified purposes” the 
institution may expend the money received only on the specified activities and there 
is normally no clause requiring the institution to accrue any benefits deriving 
therefrom to the donor. : 

7.5.1.3 Accounting treatment for receipts to be used to pay student debt 

Any receipts from third parties, e.g. National Student Financial Aid Scheme 
(NSFAS), specifically for the payment of student debt whether as a bursary or a 
loan from the third party, must be credited to accounts in the name of the respective 
party. In due course amounts will be transferred to the credit of individual students 
(and the appropriate control account). Unspent amounts are to. be treated as 
determined by the agency that provided them, usually by returning the money or by 
retaining it for future use for the same purpose. Under no circumstances should 
these receipts be included as income in an income statement with a “contra” 
expenditure item as “Bursaries and scholarships”. So called “donations for 
bursaries” to be awarded at the discretion of the institution or on other specified 
criteria must also be treated as above. Donations réceived for “scholarships” to be — 
awarded in open competition should be treated as income with a corresponding, 
suitably described, expenditure item in the income statement. If the financial 
periods of the receipt of the donation and the related expenditure do not coincide, 

> the donation should be held in a liability until it is utilised.
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7.5.2 

7.6 

7.7 

7.8 

- Student and Staff Accommodation 

This comprises all income (including any allocation by the Council from its general 
funds) and expenditure arising from operating staff and student - residence 
accommodation and directly related catering services. Any allocation by the 
Council, if directly related to any benefit to be received by staff, should be shown 
as “grant income” in the “residence and catering” income statement. The 
expenditure against this grant will be included among its expenditure in its income 
statement and equally included in “personnel remuneration” in the “education and 
general” income statement. Any “general subsidy” allocated by a council from 
general unrestricted funds must appear as expenditure of unrestricted funds on the 
income statement (Education and General) and as income on the income statement 
(Student and Staff Accommodation). 

Single income statement 

The income statement must be a comprehensive and cohesive statement of all. 
income and those expenditures that are to be “expensed”. Income of a “capital” 
nature that is. prescribed for use in the acquisition of PPE that has to be 
“capitalised”, must also be included and the appropriate transfers to the relevant 
restricted funds are to be made through the statement of changes in funds. Where a 
“reserve fund” exists for unexpended amounts restricted for use in the acquisition 
of fixed assets, the utilisation of such fund will also be reflected in the statement of 
changes in funds. Expenditures and transfers to/from provisions, e.g. depreciation, 
surpluses/deficits on disposal of PPE must likewise appear through the one income 
statement. : 

Comments on content and format of financial statements 

The above illustrations of the format and content of the financial statements and the 
notes thereto must not be taken as absolute “templates” for the respective individual 
statements or notes. However, the general format and style must be followed but, in 
instances where a particular line item is not applicable to the financial statements of 
an individual institution, that line item and the concomitant note will not appear. 
Equally, an item descriptive of an element that, for reasons of 'fair presentation’, 
should appear separately on one of the statements or as a note (but is not included 
on the above illustrative statements), that item should be included as a line item on 
the relevant financial statement with its concomitant note, or the item disclosed as a 
note, but only if appropriate. 

Disclosure of remuneration and of any “exceptional amounts” above stated 
amount: - 

Remuneration of senior management (as contemplated in S.31(1)(iii) of 
the HE Act) [sometimes labelled as executive management] 
These individuals are, in most cases, defined in the institution's Statute (e.g. 
one Statute defines "senior management" as meaning the Principal, deputy 
principals, registrar, deans and executive directors) and where so defined their 
remuneration must be disclosed. Where the institution's Statute does not define 
senior management, or executive management, or a similar term, in this 
way, senior management is deemed to comprise, at a minimum, Principal,
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Deputy Principal(s), Registrar, Chief Executive Officers of Finance, of 

-Personnel/Human Resource Management and of Estates, and full-time 

- Executive Deans. 

7.8.1 Introduction 

Disclosure of relevant financial and non-financial information is a fundamental . 

component of evidence of “good.and effective governance”. This policy statement 

for technikons and universities requires standards of governance, management and 

financial reporting that are in line with South African Statements of Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice and the King Report on Corporate Governance. 

Public higher education institutions (HEIs) are empowered, in terms of the Higher 

Education Act 1997 (No. 101 of 1997), as amended, amongst others, to employ 

staff and to determine their remuneration. As regards the 'senior management’ and 

other highly paid staff, there are no established or formal norms among institutions 

_with regard to levels of compensation. In this regard, the placing of remuneration 

packages of all Principals and Senior Management in the public domain is seen as 

an important part of the process to ensure that the public higher education 

institutions, while autonomous, become more efficient and accountable for the 

utilisation of their intellectual, infrastructural and financial resources. 

\ 

78.2 Policy 

HEIs must report annualised compensation (gross remuneration) for all members of 

“Senior Management” as well as “exceptional payments” (as defined) above the . 

specified amount to any such employee. , . 

They must also report payments to non-employee. members of Council, 

distinguishing between re-imbursive allowances, on the one hand, and fees for 

attendance at or membership of meetings, on the other. 

783 Disclosure of compensation (gross remuneration) and of exceptional payments 

The gross remuneration, as defined, must be disclosed, including the name and 

__ designated post occupied for each member of the "Senior Management". 

The amount of “gross remuneration” for any individual ‘should be expressed. as an 

“annualised” figure. 

Two categories of amounts are required: 

e Gross remuneration 

e Exceptional amounts 

~ Gross Remuneration includes all amounts/facilities from the institution for which 

the individual is liable for income tax (other than amounts declared as “exceptional 

payments”). (Where an individual receives remuneration/compensation in a 

capacity other than his/her primary function, such remuneration/compensation must 

be included and an explanatory note provided. This must include all 

remuneration/compensation from affiliated bodies that form part ‘of the
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consolidated financial statements of the institution). The amount of “gross remuneration” will be computed as the “cost tothe employer” and will thus include _ the employer's contribution to health insurance and to post-employment benefits, 
e.g. pension. 

‘Gross remuneration will, therefore, include: 

. (a) salaries; 

‘(d) - allowances expressed in monetary terms, 

(b) _ salary supplementations; 
(c) . fees, annual or special bonusés, 

(e) the deemed value (market or income. tax value) of benefits of which the “rand” 
value is not given (low interest loans, free or subsidised use of an institution-owned 
vehicle, free or subsidised housing, employer contributions to pension and medical 
aid and other forms of insurance funds, etc.), . 

(f) overtime or commuted overtime payments 
(g) . employer's contribution to benefits 

If an employee is required to live in specified accommodation in terms of the 
contract of employment, the income tax value, rather than a “market” value-of the 
benefit must be used. . . 

. Where an employee receives any form of remuneration or benefit from an entity 

7.9 

7.9.1 

that falls within the scope of control of the institution and is thus “consolidated” in 
its financial statements, such amounts must be included Se 

Taxes and levies, not related to individual employees, but paid by an employer in 
respect of its employee complement are not to be included. _ 

Exceptional payments will include commutation of leave, special bonuses; amounts 
paid in respect of “restraint of trade”, etc. , 

For the year ended 31 December 2002 the disclosure of "exceptional payments" of 
amounts received by an individual will apply where the aggregate amount for the - 
year exceeds: R249 999, For subsequent years the respective amounts will be 
determined by the Minister and communicated to each technikon and university. In 
the absence of such a determination the applicable amount for the previous year 
will apply. . 

The example of the format and content of the required disclosure is included in 
Chapter 5.8 - Note 15 to the annual financial statements on page 47 above. 

Additional information to be submitted to Department of Education 

Introduction 

The information required by the Department will, in addition to the “hard copy” 
financial statements, be contained on three Microsoft Excel spreadsheets. A copy of 
the “Excel workbook” will be supplied annually to institutions via e-mail. The 
format of the spreadsheets will be inserted in advance before the disks are sent to 
institutions. These formats must be used for inserting the relevant required financial 
data. The formulae in the spreadsheet “Indicators” are computed automatically but
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~ certain of the cells that are marked “.-->“ will require insertion of user specific 

. data not contained in the spreadsheet of financial data. oo 

The data on the disk must be inserted and submitted by the institution together with 

-appropriate certification by the institution’s auditors together with the institution’s 

“Annual Report” not more than six months after the financial year-end date of a 

~ university/technikon. (A suitable audit report appears in Chapter 6 on page 48.) 

If IS ESSENTIAL THAT ALL INSTITUTIONS USE THE EXCEL 
WORKBOOK SUPPLIED ANNUALLY BY THE DEPARTMENT : 

7.9.2. Content of Excel Workbook 

The data required on the three spreadsheets is separated into: oS 

(i) - basic financial data from the financial statements, and 

(ii).  performance/status indicators, the detail of which appears above. 

___ . (iii). supplementary financial data relating to 

(a) expenditure by activities . 
(b) investments data and 
(c) borrowings data. 

7.9.3... Purposes for which data are required. | 

The data required on the three spreadsheets serves various essential purposes for the 

Department of Education. Firstly, it is necessary to have the financial information 

contained in the audited financial statements of all universities and technikons 

available in a format that facilitates analysis and interpretation. The Department has | 

a responsibility to be constantly aware of the “financial health” of institutions and 

- to be in a position to give advice on the financial “norms” that are indicative of 

sound financial management. Furthermore, the Department must, on 4 regular basis, 

be able to respond to questions about the sector from parliament, from other state 

departments, from the media and from the general public. 

The Department is aware of the necessity to be able to prepare scenario projections 

for improving its own planning processes as well as providing planning data to 

other state departments, e.g. Finance, to enable the future of higher education to be 

addressed on a sound footing. For these reasons. it is essential that individual 

institutions, in preparing their annual submissions, prepare the projection data as 

accurately as possible. The need for the inclusion of the final annual budget figures 

for the reporting year will enable the department to assess any significant variations’ 

and, if there is seen to be a common trend among institutions, to inquire into 

possible causes and to address possible solutions. oe 

7.9.4 ~ Explanation of content required 

The financial data for the reporting year,.the corresponding data for the final 

approved budget for that year and the projected budgets for the following two years 

are required in columnar form. As regards the latter, the question arises whether 

changes in. the value of money between the current and the subsequent year should — 

~ be included in the final projection. It has been decided that these latter figures
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should assume the value of money at the time the. projection is prepared, i.e. no: account should be taken of inflation in the following year. Thus, only real increases or decreases are to be disclosed. © a = a. 

The basic financial data will require extraction, for the most part, of figures stated _ on the various financial statements. The items relating to the income statement must reconcile to the relevant aggregate amounts recorded in the appropriate segment, 
including the final surplus/deficit. Additionally, information is required that will 
require extraction from the working documents in the preparation of the final 
statements. The following clarification relates to the required information on 
personnel cost: 

1. Data required on personnel costs include, as in the income statement, the cost of 
employment inclusive of all benefits, plus all statutory levies and taxes for which the 
employer is responsible. This does not include direct cost of, eg., training, 
recruitment and relocation. It is essential that, as with other items of expenditure, 
're-current' be separated from ‘extra-ordinary/non-recurrent' amounts. Costs of 
retrenchments, prior year adjustments for accumulated leave and_ post-employment 
benefits must be included as non-recurrent in both the income statement and in the 
data supplied on computer disk. 

2. Academic staff: This includes all staff who are classified as academic staff by the 
institution, as well as researchers but not research support staff. Such staff will have 
teaching and/or research duties. 

3. Library professional staff: Will comprise the holders of posts ordinarily requiring a 
qualification in library and information science. 

4. Permanent staff are normally on pension or provident funds, but are distinguished by 
having open-ended appointments to retirement. , 

5. These costs must not include “outsource contract costs” associated with staff and 
student housing. 

6. There are data requirements relating to student debt and amounts written off as 
irrecoverable but the latter does not include increases or decreases in provision made 
for probable irrecoverable amounts. 

7. Information on bursaries and scholarships, on the one hand, and loans granted, on the 
other, will differentiate between those funded from the institution's own “Council 
controlled” funding and those specifically funded for these purposes, including’ 
amounts credited directly to student fee accounts from agencies, corporations or other 
such sources. 

The data required on the separate spreadsheet for “performance indicators” are to 
be calculated exactly according to the formula in the relevant cell of the - 
spreadsheet. The majority of the calculations will be computed automatically by 
means of the imbedded formulae but are dependent on the relevant data being 
correctly located in the first spreadsheet. Where manual calculations are required 
the line item is clearly identified.



STAATSKOERANT, 29 AUGUSTUS 2003° No. 25407 89 __ 

The percentage changes between. the data for the years “n”, “nt+1” and “nt2” 

reflected in the financial data provided, are calculated by means of imbedded 

formulae dependent on the relevant data correctly located in the first spreadsheet.



90 No. 25407 GOVERNMENT GAZETTE, 29 AUGUST 2003 

Formula to arrive at “Capitalisation Indicator” - Clarification: 

Example of computation of Capitalisation Measure: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

Current Liabilities : 
State Guaranteed Loans "| X10 0 
Extra-ordinary Items* 7 X 1,0 0 
Other . X 1,67 +R 287 836.000 
Less Current Assets 
Deposits with public Debt Commissioners X 1,0 0 

Other _| X 1,0 -R -221 982 000 
Sub-total 65 854 000 
Add Non-Current Liabilities 
Extra-Ordinary* X0,05 0 
State Guaranteed X0,015 0 

Other X0,125 +R 11 022 000 
Sub-total 76 876 000 
Less Realisable value of Non-Current Investments 
Deposits with Public Debt Commissioners X0,015 0 
Other X0,75 -R 598 004 000 
Sub-total -521 128 000 
Aggregate Depreciation Provisions X 0,05 +R 17 786 000 
Endowment, Agency, Trust Funds — should be 

represented by realisable assets. 40,75. | +R 270 449 000 
Residence funds X0,5  . | +R 2 129 000 
Other “Restricted funds” ** X0,5 +R 178 962 000 
CAPITALISATION MEASURE R -51 802 000 
  * “Extra-Ordinary” current or non-current liabilities arise from situations not normally part of an institution's 

operations, ¢.g. amounts accumulated over a number of years and only now provided for employee or 
post employment benefits, e.g. accumulated leave entitlements 

** “Other restricted funds” will exclude funds invested in PPE, © 

The above example illustrates the components and the relative weightings that are to be 
applied in the computation of the “capitalisation measure”. The result is.a subjective measure 
of the “going concern” status of a respective technikon or university. 

The other indicators required are self-explanatory. For those indicators that require student or 
staff data the definitions to determine these must be consistent with the definitions used in the 
Higher Education Management Information System (HEMIS) to be found in the Glossary of 
terms used for that system, a print copy of which is available from the Department of 
Education. , 

 



APPENDIX A 

The XYZ Higher Education Institution 

Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 20nn 

  

  

        

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

    

  

  

  

  

  

      
  

<-—-—- EDUCATION AND GENERAL-—--> 
N COUNCIL SPECIFICALLY : se . STUDENT 

Oo CONTROLLED FUNDED SUB- AND STAFF .- Lo 

TE ACTIVITIES oo ACCOMMO- pS . 

3 TOTAL DATION TOTAL 20nn-1 
, UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED , . RESTRICTED 

TOTAL INCOME 754779 302 711 1057 490 25 994 1083 484 1020 497 

RECURRENT ITEMS 738 748 302 711 1.041 459 25 994 ~ 1067 453 936 375 

State Appropriations— Subsidies and Grants. 343 127 23 502 | 366 629 0 _ 366 629 360 282 

Tuition and Other Fee Income 178 969 0 178 969 25 994 204 963 188 422 

Income from Contracts 4131584 186 011 317595 _317 595 —276 126 

For research 130 798 182 895 313.693 313 693 276 126 

For Other Activities 786 3.116. 3 902 3902 _ 9 

Sales of Goods and Services © 27 098 ; 10010 37 108 37 108 44 423 

] Private Gifts.and Grants 41.131 115 670 156 801 a 156 801 67 121 

SUB-TOTAL / 721909 335 193 1057102 | ~ 25 994 1083 096 824 830 

Net Income received under restricting conditions : . . . oo / o 

. carried forward ‘-101.192: |.” -101192 {| : -101 192 

SUB TOTAL 721 909 ‘234 001 955 910 ' 981904 . 

Interest and Dividends 3 16 839 1. 68710 85 54! _0 : 85 549 ‘__84 122 

NON-RECURRENT ITEMS 16 031 0 : 16 031 __9 16.031 ‘0 

Profit/Loss on disposal of PPE 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Profit/Loss on Disposal of Investments 8331 0 $331 0 8831 0 

Disposal of Expensed Equipment 10 7700. 0 7700 0 7700 9 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE - 738 537 299 210 1037-747 37611 1075 358 972.780 

RECURRENT ITEMS | 720 556 145 095 865 651 34611 ‘900 262 972 780. 

Personnel. | 1 372 572 113 736 486 308 7842 .. 494 150 445919. 

Academic professional 215 415 104 861 320 276 : 320 276 323 239 

Other Personnel - : 157 157 8875 166 032 7 842 173 874- 122 680: 

Other Current Operating Expenses 12 279 991 31359 311 350 19 544 . 330.894 463119. 

Depreciation Provision Cs 1 51225 Qo 51225 6-500 » 57 725° 51231 

Depreciation — Additional Provision 1 1275 0 1275 | “ 725 "___2:000 1.000 

SUB-TOTAL mo 711 063 145 095 850 158 34611 $84 769 . 961 269- 

- Finance Costs 13 15 493 15 493 9 15 493 11512 

NON-RECURRENT ITEMS 17981. 154 115 172.096 3.000 175 096 0 

Extra Ordinary Operating Expenses ) 154 115 154 115 0 “154115 0 

Personnel — Prior Year Adjustments 0 0 - 0 “0 0 

Capital Expenditure Expensed 12.981 0 12981 0 12.981 0 

Depreciation —- Additional Provision 1 3.000 0 35 000 3 000 8.000. 0. 

NET SURPLUS/@EFICIT() After Transfers 16 242 3501 19 743 “ALE 617 8 126 4717   
  

NB: The separation between Recurrent and Non-Recurrent Income & Expenditure items must be strictly observed. Consistent comparisons cannot be made 

unless this is done. The inclusion of prior year obligations for accumulated leave and post employment benefits are cases in point.   
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APPENDIX B 

FUNDAMENTAL DISTINCTION BETWEEN CORPORATIONS (COMPANIES) 
OPERATING IN PRIVATE SECTOR AND PUBLIC HIGHER EDUCATION 

INSTITUTIONS 

The financing of corporations operating in the private sector is, apart from money borrowed, 
provided by individuals, corporate entities and others that do so in the expectation of deriving 
a flow of income (profit) in return for their investment. These individuals and corporations 
that provide this finance become the effective “owners” (shareholders) of the corporation. 

The operation of such corporations is entrusted (mandated) to a group of professional 
managers (directors) who are responsible for the strategic direction of the corporation and for 
its day-to-day operations. The directors also decide on the proportion of the profits made by 
the entity that should be given to the shareholders as “dividends”. If, at annual meetings, the 
shareholders do not approve of the decisions and actions of the directors they can, by 
resolution, remove the existing board and appoint new directors. 

The financial interest of the shareholders is expressed in the annual financial statements of a 
corporation as the difference between “Total Assets and Total Liabilities” and is referred to as 
the “Shareholders Equity”. Shareholders equity comprises the financing provided (Share 
Capital) and the earnings/profits’ retained (Reserves) for the. ongoing operations of the 
corporation. - 

The amount of the Equity disclosed on a balance sheet is ot intended to reflect the real value 
of the ownership of a corporation. In the case of listed/quoted corporations this value is a 
derivative of the values at which shares change hands on the Stock Exchange and thus from 
what a willing buyer is prepared to pay to a willing seller. 

_ By contrast, Public Higher Education institutions (HEIs) are creations of the state by a general 
Higher Education Act and by individual Statutes covering the governance, administration and 
structures enacted by each HEI. However, these institutions are not organs of the state 
although the state provides the initial funds to establish the infrastructure, and provides a 
significant proportion of the funding for annual operating costs. The state is not legally 
entitled to exercise direct control over individual institutions, each of which is a separate 
autonomous legal entity. Thus there are no “owners” of such institutions. 

In terms of the Higher Education Act, each institution must establish a “Council” (akin to a 
board of directors in private sector corporations) that is mandated by the state to provide 
strategic direction for the institution “in its best interests” and to appoint senior executive staff 
responsible for the management and operation of the institution. A Council also monitors the 
performance of the management of an institution. The Principal of a higher education 
institution is equivalent to a “chief executive officer/director” of a company in the private 
sector. The Principal is accountable to the Council for her/his actions. 

Neither the Council nor the state or any other “stakeholders” in HEIs can be seen to be 
equivalent to the shareholders of a company. The funds received by an HEI and any of its 
operating surpluses belong to it, but certain of the funds received will be subject to legal 
obligations or limitations on their use imposed at the time of their receipt.
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Funds that are,. provided or accrue. ‘to: an. HEI are either for its general 

operational/infrastructural needs or are for specifically identified (by the provider) purposes. 

In the former case the Council is both responsible for,‘and controls’ the use of, ‘such ‘funds. In 

the latter case the Council is responsible for ensuring that the funds are used according to the 

mandate under which they were provided. Council’ may, however, refuse to accept such 

funding on the grounds that its use would be contrary to the strategic objectives or principles 

ofthe institution. = 8 =... Se ee 

The “Capital” of an HEI at any point, but especially as a measure at the end of a financial 

reporting period, comprises funding over which Council exercises. both control and 

responsibility, on the one hand, and funds over which the Council has responsibility but not 

control, on the other. These are separately identified respectively as “Unrestricted Funds” and 

“Restricted Funds”. In addition, there are funds received that were utilised to develop the 

infrastructure of the institution that are not “expensed” and. appear on its balance sheet as 

“Non-Current Assets — Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)”. The “Funds Group” appearing 

on the balance sheet comprises, therefore, (i) Utilised Funds - PPE; (ii) Unrestricted Funds, 

and (iii) Restricted Funds. The unrestricted funds are those that-are under the absolute, 

unfettered control of the Council. The restricted funds (which will eventually be utilised for 

the specified purposes) are analogous to “Moneys in Trust” in so far as their disbursement is 

_ legally dependent on those purposes for which they were provided and. are thus not under the 

“control” of the Council. Lo en 

It is thus apparent that the term “Rquity” is not applicable to HEIs as the term expresses “an 

ownership entitlement”. The Oxford English Dictionary definition of “equity” would preclude 

its application to the relationships of an HEI with its stakeholders." a 

The relationships within individual structures in.a private sector corporation and those within 

a HEI in the public sector, is completely different: The control aspect of the finance available 

differs: the proprietary interests are different. However, within these differences there is the 

common essential requirement for accountability within structures for good governance. In 

the case of private corporations the accountability is to the. shareholders/owners and in the 

‘ease of HEIs it is to the state and other stakeholders. It is the state and the implicit 

requirements of good governance and the appropriate standards of financial reporting that 

determine the format and content of this accountability. 

The rule of consistency in financial reporting requires that like items must be subject to like 

treatment. All funds that are restricted in use, whether surpluses on activities funded from 

“restricted funds” or donations received for specified activities prior to the commencement of 

all or portion of the designated activity — must be treated alike. The treatment of a “restricted 

donation” in these circumstances as a “deferred income” liability is inconsistent with the 

recognised treatment of surpluses. arising from donor specified activities that are likewise 

restricted and are thus added to the respective restricted fund. 

Furthermore, the inclusion of restricted funds: among Non-Current Liabilities cannot be 

justified on legal grounds as the institution has title to the funds as long as it is capable of 

fulfilling the terms under which they were granted. If there are realistic grounds for believing . 

that the institution will not be ina position to utilise these funds as required and, as a result, 

will have to return the money, then and then only should the respective amount be disclosed 

with Current or Non-Current Liabilities as the case may be. In fact, the concept of “deferred 

income” is irrelevant within the funding of specified activities at HEIs. Even in a situation of 

a “use it or lose it within an identified time period” clause in a funding agreement for a
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specified activity, any balance of funds remaining at the end of that period ceases to be part of 
the institution’s “funding pool” and becomes a current liability which is due to the provider of 
the funds.
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APPENDIX C 

IDENTIFYING CONTROL, JOINT CONTROL AND SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE _ 
| _ RELATIONSHIPS _ 

Bases for consolidation 

In view of the creation of increasing numbers of corporate entities (including trusts) within 

‘and on the actual corporate “boundaries” of technikons and universities, the treatment of the 

finances of these entities has assumed significant importance in reporting on the finances of 

the institutions . oo 

[Extracted and adapted from a paper prepared by Prof. A Watson of UCT] 

i, INTRODUCTION 

Group financial statements are required to include the results of all entities over which a HE 

institution has at least significant influence (this would include entities controlled, jointly 

controlled or significantly influenced). There are a number of different ways in which the 

results are included, depending on the degree of influence that the institution is able to exert. 

These methods include consolidation, proportionate consolidation or equity accounting. 

All the methods result in recognition of the profit/loss when it is earned as opposed to when it | 

is distributed, and a balance sheet impact that is related to the underlying share of net assets of 

the enterprise as opposed to the cost of the investment. All three methods require goodwill on 

acquisition to be amortised over its useful life as an expense, and the elimination of unrealised 

profits on transactions between “group” entities. 

If the institution has enterprises that are controlled, jointly controlled. or significantly 

influenced, the “group” financial statements has to include the results of the enterprise unless: 

|, The investment is acquired and held exclusively with a view to its subsequent disposal, 

_ or 

2. - It operates under severe long-term restrictions, which significantly impair its ability to 

transfer funds to the parent. This is usually considered to be exchange control 

restrictions, but could include any enterprise that is controlled by the institution that 

institution is not able to benefit from as a result of restrictions. 

3. The results of the enterprise are not material. 

2. CONTROL 

Control is defined as the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise 

so as to obtain benefits from its activities (AC131:09). If an enterprise is controlled, it is 

required to be consolidated in almost all circumstances. oe 

Control is presumed to be obtained when one enterprise acquires more than half of the voting 

rights of another enterprise unless, in exceptional circumstances, it can be demonstrated that 

such ownership does not constitute control. It is possible that one enterprise can acquire 

control over another enterprise despite not having more than half of the voting rights. AC 131 > 

identifies the following circumstances in which control results from the:
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“(a) power over more than one half of the voting rights of the other enterprise by virtue of an 
agreement with other investors; 

(b) power to govern the financial and operating policies of the other enterprise under a 
statute or an agreement; . . 

(c) power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors or 
equivalent governing body of the other enterprise, or 

(d) power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the board of directors or equivalent 
governing body of the other enterprise” (AC 131:11; IAS 22: 10). 

It is worth noting that control over an enterprise requires having the ability to direct or 
dominate its decision-making, regardless of whether this power is actually exercised. The 
ability to govern decision-making must be accompanied by the objective of obtaining benefits 
from the entity’s activities. 

< 

An interpretation (AC412) on the consolidation of special purpose entities (SPEs) is relevant 
for an institution as it specifically looks at the definition of control in SPEs. If an SPE is 
controlled it must be consolidated. Control may arise through the predetermination of 
activities of the SPE, and may exist even in cases where an enterprise owns little or none of 
the SPE’s equity. AC412 lists the following situations that are likely to indicate a control 
relationship by the enterprise): . “ 

1. in substance, the activities of the SPE are being conducted on behalf of the enterprise 
according to its specific business needs so that the enterprise obtains benefits from the 

- SPE’s operations, , 

2. in substance, the enterprise has the decision-making powers to obtain the majority of the 
benefits of the activities of the SPE or, by setting up an “autopilot” mechanism, the 
enterprise has delegated its decision making powers, 

3. in substance, the enterprise has rights to obtain the majority of the benefits of the SPE and 
therefore may be exposed to risks incident to the activities of the SPE, or 

' 4. in substance, the enterprise retains the majority of the residual or ownership risks related 
to the SPE or its assets in order to obtain benefits from its activities. 

IFAC Public sector committee has very useful guidance on this issue in ED 6 (paras 31 
to 34).. These paragraphs have been reproduced as they could be used as a basis: for 

_ determining control: 

_ Determining whether control exists: 

31. “In examining the relationship ‘between two entities, control is presumed to exist when: 
at least one of the following power conditions and one of the following benefit 
conditions exist. Under these circumstances, the presumption that control exists is only 
rebutted where there is clear evidence of control being held by another entity. 

Power conditions . . 
(a) . The entity has, directly or indirectly through controlled entities, ownership of a 

majority voting interest in the other entity. 

(b) ‘The entity. has the power, either granted by, or exercised within, existing 
legislation, to appoint or remove a majority of the members of the governing 
body of the other entity.



32. 

33. 

. @ The mandate of the other entity i 
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(c) _ the entity has the power to cast, or regulate the casting of, a majority of the 

votes that are likely to be cast at a general meeting of the other entity. : 

(d) The entity has power over more than one half of the voting rights in the other 

entity (where its ownership interest is in the form of a shareholding or other 

formal equity structure). 

Benefit conditions 

(a) The entity has the power to extract distributions of assets/financial assets from 

the other entity, = oo 

(b) The entity has the power to dissolve the other entity and obtain a significant 

level of the residual economic benefits. 

When one or more of the circumstances listed in paragraph 31 does not exist, the 

following factors are likely, either individually or collectively, to be indicative of the 

existence of control. . os 

Power indicators 

(a) The entity has the ability to veto operating and capital budgets of the other 

entity. . SB St oe 

(b) _ -The entity has the ability to veto, overrule, or modify governing body decisions 

of the other entity. . 

‘(c). The entity has the ability to approve the hiring, reassignment, and removal of 

key personnel of the other entity. . 

ity is established, and limited by, legislation. 

(e) The entity holds a “golden share” (or equivalent) in the other entity that, 

confers rights to govern the financial and operating policies of that other entity. 

Benefit indicators 

(f) The entity holds direct or indirect title to the. net assets/net financial assets of 

the other entity with an ongoing right to access these. _ " co 

(g) The entity.has a right to a significant level of the net assets/net financial assets 

: of the other entity in the event of a liquidation or in a distribution other than a _ 

liquidation. : er a 

(h) The entity is able to direct the other entity to co-operate with it in achieving its 

“Objectives. Do . 

(i) . The entity is exposed to the residual liabilities of the other entity. 

The following diagram indicates the basic’ steps involved in establishing control of 

another entity. It should be read in conjunction with paragraphs 23 to 32 above." .
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Establishing Control of another Entity 

  

    
Does the entity benefit from its ownership | No 

interest in thé other entity (Para. 24) a, rT 
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Does the entity have the power to govern the | Na 
| financial and operating policies of the other Po 
“entity (Paras. 25, 29). a 

| Yes 

Is the power to govern the financial and | Na 

(Paras. 25 — 27) . a . ,   

  

      
operating policies at present being exercised? 
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“Is the power to control limited to a soverein, Yes 

  
- entity? (Paras. 28, 30) 

    
  

legislative or regularity power enjoyed by the 

      

      

s] | 
  

  

  

Does the relationship with the other entity 

      

confer sufficient risks and rewards to yield - |_Na 
control of the other entity? rd 
(Paras. 31 & 32) 

  
  

Ves |       

  

  
_ Entity controls other entity         | 
  

  
Control does not appear to exist. Consider whether the other entity is an 
associate, as defined in IPSAS XX Accounting for Investments in Associates, 
or whether the relationship between the two entities constitutes ‘joint 
control as in IPSAS XX Financial Reporting of Interest in Joint Ventures ; 
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3. JOINT CONTROL 

Joint control is the contractually or otherwise agreed sharing of control over an activity. | 

Where two.or more parties are committed to undertaking an activity which is subject to joint 

control in terms of a binding arrangement, this is known as a joint venture. - The word 

“binding” has been highlighted as that is a significant difference between the usual GAAP 

~ requirements, and the definition in terms of the public sector ED. ae . 

In terms of AC119 (or internationally, IAS3 1), the definition of a joint venture is the same, 

except that the word “contractual” is used instead of binding. This change is intentional in 

order to broaden the application of the Standard to both contractual and binding arrangements. 

The definition in AC119 includes the word “economic”, which has been deleted from the. 

public service ED definition. This is also deliberate, as it is intended to broaden the definition 

to include activities that do not generate cash flows. — 

In terms of the definition, if an institution has a binding arrangement to share control over an - 

enterprise, that enterprise is a joint venture and must be accounted for in terms of the selected 

policy. The accounting implications depend on the way in which the venture is structured. A 

joint venture may take the form of jointly controlled operations, jointly controlled assets and 

jointly controlled enterprises, In ‘the first two cases, the institution’s accounts would 

‘automatically include the attributable portion of the joint venture. If the joint venture is in the 

form of a separate enterprise, then adjustments in the group financial statements are required 

either in the form of equity accounting or proportionate consolidation, depending on the. . 

policy selected. .- ce 

Binding arrangement:- oo . . 

To be a joint venture, there needs to be a binding arrangement to establish joint control. The - 

' arrangement may be as a result of a contract, in terms of legislation, articles or by-laws of the — 

joint venture. Whatever its form, the arrangement is usually in writing and deals with such 

matters. as: oe . 

(a). the activity, duration and reporting obligations of the joint venture 

.(b) the appointment of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the joint 

“venture and the voting rights of the venturers, _ 

(c) capital contributions by the venturers, and 

(d) the sharing by the venturers of the output, revenue, expenses/expenditures, 

surpluses or deficits, or cash flows of the joint venture. 

The arrangement must establish joint control over the joint venture. Such a requirement 

ensures that no single venturer is in a position to assume unilateral control of the activity (in 

“which case it should be consolidated). The arrangement will identify those decisions in areas 

essential to the goals of the joint venture which require the consent of all the venturers and | 

those decisions which may require the consent of a specified majority of the venturers. — 

SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE 

Significant influence is defined as the power to participate in the financial. and operating 

policy decisions of the investee, but is not control over those policies. 

xv



100 No. 25407 GOVERNMENT GAZETTE, 29 AUGUST 2003 

Whether an investor has significant influence over the investee is a matter of judgement based on the nature of the relationship between the investor and the investee. In a normal company situation, there is a presumption that a shareholding of between 20% and 50% will give rise to significant influence. _ 

The existence of significant influence by an investor is usually evidenced in one or more of the following ways: 
(a) representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the 

investee , 
(b) _ participation in policy making processes 

- (c) material transactions between the investor and the investee 
(d) interchange of managerial personnel, or 
(e) provision of essential technical information, © 

If an institution has significant influence over investees, the investee must be accounted for on 
the equity method. [End of Prof. Watson's paper] 

WHERE NEITHER CONTROL NOR SIGIFICANT INFLUENCE EXISTS 

There will be situations where funds are provided to a separate legal entity specifically or 
' implicitly intended solely or almost solely for a particular higher education institution (HEI) 

and for which the appropriate “tax deduction certificate” is provided, but the institution has neither control nor significant influence over that entity as defined above. In such cases the 
entity will be deemed to be holding such funds on behalf of the institution and these must be 
brought to account in its financial statements as should the corresponding deposit of these 
funds with the specific entity. Alternatively, the entity's financial statements should be 
consolidated with those of the HEI 
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